
 

 
 
 
 
Summons to Meeting 
 
Thursday 13 February 2020 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Friday 21 February 2020, 1.30 pm 
 

Council Chamber, Allerdale House 
 

Membership: 
  
Councillor Iain Greaney (Co-Chair) Councillor Alan Pitcher (Co-Chair) 
Councillor Carmel Bell Councillor Nicky Cockburn 
Councillor John Crouch Councillor Malcolm Grainger 
Councillor Michael Heaslip Councillor Joe Holliday 
Councillor Daniel Horsley Councillor Adrian Kirkbride 
Councillor Michael Little Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Ian Hinde on 01900 702544. 

 

Agenda 
 
1. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

 To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 17 January 2020. 
  

2. Apologies for Absence   
 

3. Declaration of Interests   
 

 Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda, in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 

  

4. Questions   
 

 To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the meeting. 



  

5. Public Participation   
 

 To hear representations from members of the public on items which appear on 
the agenda – submitted in writing or by electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 
working days before the meeting. 

  

6. To consider the report of the Climate Change Task and Finish Group  
(Pages 7 - 34) 

 

7. Strategic Commissioning and Procurement Strategy  (Pages 35 - 54) 
 

8. Quarter 3 Performance Report 2019/20  (Pages 55 - 80) 
 

9. Forward Plan  (Pages 81 - 92) 
 

10. Work Programme and Outcomes Monitoring  (Pages 93 - 96) 
 

11. Task and Finish Group/Working Group Updates  (Verbal Report) 
 

 
 

 
 
Interim Chief Executive 
 

 
Date of Next Meeting: 

 
Friday 27 March 2020, 1.30 pm 

Council Chamber, Allerdale House 
 
 



At a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in Council Chamber - 
Allerdale House, Workington on Friday 17 January 2020 at 1.30 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Iain Greaney (Chair)  
Councillor Carmel Bell Councillor Nicky Cockburn 
Councillor John Crouch Councillor Michael Heaslip 
Councillor Joe Holliday Councillor Daniel Horsley 
Councillor Adrian Kirkbride Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Alan Pitcher Councillor Malcolm 
Grainger and Councillor Michael Little 
 
Staff Present 
 
A FitzGerald, I Hinde, J Irving, L Jardine, K Kerrigan and G Wilson 
 

 
308. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 06 December 2019 were signed as a 
correct record. 
 

309. Declaration of Interests  
 
None Declared 
 

310. Questions  
 
None Received 
 

311. Public Participation  
 
None Received 
 

312. Presentation from the Head of Place Development on recent development 
to support town centres  
 
The Head of Place Development attending the meeting to provide an update to 
members on recent developments to support town centres. 
 
Members were advised of the facelift scheme and that grants had been 
provided to businesses in Silloth and Aspatria to carry out cosmetic 
improvements to properties. Going forward the scheme will look to continue but 
may be funded differently. 
 
The Officer also explained to members that funding for improvements may be 
available from the Borderlands Scheme and that a funding bid will be made for 
Wigton and Silloth. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



Since events had been brought ‘in house’ Allerdale has successfully ran Taste 
Cumbria (both summer and winter) and feedback has been excellent. The 
Workington Christmas Market was also popular and events like these are 
important additions to town centres to support economic activity. 
 
The Head of Development then discussed the Town Fund and that Workington 
was under consideration to receive up to £25 million funding which, if successful 
will be used on projects in the Workington Town Centre Area. To meet 
government requirements, a town deal board has been set up with John 
Coughlan from TSP Engineering appointed Chair, with the first board meeting 
scheduled for 24th January 2020.  
 
Members asked questions of the officer in relation to the future of town centres 
and whether caps can be introduced to limit certain business types. 
 
The officer explained the future was unclear but that town centres are changing 
away from traditional shopping, the challenge is to think about town centres 
differently. In relation of capping of business types it is not possible, but the 
planning authority reviews applications based on class use order as part of the 
planning regime. 
 
 

313. Presentation from the Programme Director for Maryport Regeneration  
 
The Programme Director attended the meeting to deliver a presentation to 
members on the Maryport Regeneration Scheme. 
 
Members were provided with an overview of the progress made to date with an 
update on priority projects which included Curzon Street, Senhouse Street, the 
Harbour, the Prom and the implementation of a new calendar of events. To 
assist the officers with and to provide a link to residents the Maryport Advisory 
Group has been created, which is split into two areas, ‘Town Centre’ and 
‘Waterfront’.  
 
To support the regeneration officers have made a bid for funding from the 
Future High Street Fund. The initial expression of exercise was successful and 
the team will now develop a business case, the decision to award funding or not 
will be made in autumn 2020. Further funding may also be available from the 
Historic England Heritage Fund. 
 
The officer then went on to explain the national issues that are affecting high 
streets, including online sales and footfall decreases, which in turn affects retail 
employment and the local economy.  
 
Members were also advised of further plans for Maryport including 
pedestrianisation, digitalisation, the reuse of buildings, and improvements to the 
arrival and access to Maryport. 
 
Members then asked questions in relation to potential funding for existing 
businesses, the Maryport Conservation Area and Community Engagement. 
 

Page 4



314. To determine future work by the Committee in response to these 
presentations  
 
Members discussed potential options to support the ongoing work in Maryport 
and Workington including the implementation of a Task and Finish Group but 
came to the conclusion that this would be duplicating the work of the already 
implemented Workington Town Board and Maryport Advisory Group. 
 

315. Update on the Reedlands Road project  
 
The Head of Place Development provided an update to members, advising that 
the project had been delayed due to the site being on an area of mine working, 
and that they are still working with Network Rail to mitigate potential risks. 
 

316. Forward Plan  
 
The Programme Director for Maryport provided members with further 
information in relation to the creation of a new Housing Company. The company 
aims to address housing shortages in the Borough whilst generating an income 
for the Council. An Initial three properties have been marked for re-development 
in Keswick and Maryport which will create holiday lettings and residential units. 
 
The Head of Place Development then clarified the executive decision to move 
the Market operation ‘in-house’, members were advised that this move will 
increase Allerdale’s profit share and reduce management fees. An options 
appraisal had been undertaken and the management of the markets will 
complement and create opportunities for the Place Development Team.  
 
Members noted the contents of the Forward Plan 
 

317. Work Programme and Outcomes Monitoring  
 
Members were asked to consider items for the 2020/21 work programme and 
discussed the content of the remaining meetings to be held in 2019/20. 
 

318. Task and Finish Group/Working Group Updates  
 
Updates were provided to members of the work of the task and finish groups, 
 

 Climate Change Group – a climate workshop was held on the morning of 
17 January 2020 which included representatives from local schools and 
various climate change groups. The group will present its report at the 
next overview and scrutiny meeting, 21 February 2020. 
 

 Procurement Group – the group has continued to meet with officers and 
are awaiting the release of further documentation 

 

 Future Waste Management Group – officers have begun the TUPE work 
and are working with employees of the current waste contractor 

 

Page 5



 Budget Group – the group are going to have fortnightly meetings and will 
report at the next meeting, members were encouraged to participate in 
budget conversations. 

 
The meeting closed at 3.30 pm 
 

Page 6



 

  

Report of the Climate Change 

Task and Finish Group 

February 2020 
 

“Allerdale – a great place to live, work and visit” 
 Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 

TASK AND FINISH GROUP ON CLIMATE CHANGE:  

REPORT TO OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

 

Background 

 

On 25 September 2019, Allerdale Borough Council agreed a motion relating to climate change and 

made a specific commitment to reducing carbon emissions.  The full motion is attached at Appendix 

A.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee was requested to consider how Council could respond to 

the commitments in the motion and a Task and Finish Group (TFG) was set up to lead this work.  The 

TFG met a number of times and held a workshop for external stakeholders to discuss our emerging 

thinking and to feed in any information they felt was relevant.  The group has also considered the 

petition presented to the Council on 11 December 2019, which was integrated into its consideration 

of the motion. The list of Members of the TFG is attached at Appendix B and a report from the 

stakeholder workshop is attached as Appendix E. 

 

As part of its work, the TFG received presentations on a number of different topics, including the 

Council’s Local Plan and Cumbria’s Joint Health Strategy.  It also considered information from other 

local authorities (e.g. Stroud District Council and South Lakes District Council), as well as other 

bodies such as Friends of the Earth and Zero Carbon Britain.  The key documents considered by the 

TFG are listed in Appendix D. 

 

The Group welcome the decision to incorporate responsibility for climate change in the Leader’s 

portfolio as presented to Council on 29 January 2020. 

 

Recommendations 

 

The Task and Finish Group make the following over-arching recommendations –  

 

1. That the Council secures its response to climate change through inclusion within the 

Leader’s portfolio and with an appropriate level of dedicated officer support time.  

 

2. That a standing Climate Change Group reporting to the Executive be created to drive 

forward the Council’s response to climate change.  Such a group should consist of 

Councillors and senior officers with the authority to direct resource to deliver any and all 

actions as necessary with the agreement of the Portfolio Holder.   

 

The Group would have responsibility for creating and delivering the Council’s Climate 

Change Strategy and Action Plan and for publishing an annual report on progress.   

 

The Group would involve external experts to provide advice on wider climate change 

initiatives that may be relevant to the Council.  A suggested remit for such a Group is 

attached at Appendix C.  All members of the current Task and Finish Group would be willing 

to join this group. 

 

3. That the Council’s Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan referred to above (see proposed 

draft action plan at Appendix H) be updated to reflect the Joint Health Strategy 

commitments, as well as the 25 September 2019 Motion (Appendix A) and the discussions 

that have taken place at Council, both at the September 2019 meeting when the motion was 

Page 8



 

agreed and at the December 2019 meeting where the issue of climate change was further 

discussed.  Furthermore, it will need to reflect developing Government policy in the area of 

climate change, in particular the Environment Bill that is currently going through Parliament. 

 

It will also need to take account of the work being taken forward by the Cumbria Chief 

Executives Group and Cumbria Leaders Board Climate Change Working Group (which is 

looking at how we make Cumbria net zero), as well as commitments made by other local 

authorities in Cumbria - see diagram of groups and relationships at Appendix G. 

 

4. That the Council’s Senior Management Team and any other officers with climate change 

related responsibilities should receive relevant training on how to develop climate change 

policy and how to embed such policy into all activities of the Council.  Similar training should 

be offered to any interested councillors or officers.  Some suggested training course 

providers are listed in Appendix F. 

 

5. That a Stakeholder Engagement Plan be developed and maintained that sets out how the 

Council will interact with and learn from groups including those representing residents, 

industry, climate change experts, other local authorities, central Government and young 

people.   

 

The Stakeholder Engagement Plan should include details of how the Council will publicise its 

climate change activities and how those outside of the Council might engage with, support 

and influence those activities going forward.  It will also need to start from today so that 

stakeholders may be reassured that we take climate change seriously, that we are taking 

appropriate action and that they may be involved in the development of our response.   

 

Once the Council’s Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan has been created, the 

Stakeholder Engagement Plan should be attached and its effectiveness be reviewed as part 

of the annual report on progress mentioned above.  Attached at Appendix G is a suggested 

stakeholder map which reflects input from Members of the TFG as well as those who 

attended the stakeholder workshop on 17 January 2020. 

 

Alongside the following recommendations specific to the Motion – 

 

6. The target of becoming carbon neutral by 2030 is very challenging.  While we recommend it 

should be retained as a target and used to keep up the pressure on central Government to 

support our work, it is more important that the Council focuses on developing and delivering 

a viable, sustainable response to the challenge of climate change, rather than risk becoming 

distracted by and possibly disheartened by, a deadline.  The 2030 date should be kept under 

review and could possibly be revised as our understanding of what is possible improves. 

 

7. In support of this, the Council should carry out a “climate change audit” in order to help 

identify where the main challenges are and to inform the development of the Council’s 

Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan.  The Local Authority Climate Change Policy Group 

(which includes representation from Allerdale Borough Council) has been developing a set of 

guidelines which can be used as a basis for establishing a baseline carbon footprint.  This 

developing guidance, along with advice and guidance that is also available from Cumbria 

Action for Sustainability (CAfS), should be used as the basis for the proposed audit.   

Page 9



 

8. In support of our recommendations, the Council should consider what actions it can take 

immediately.  As an example, the TFG suggests that we build on the good work that is 

already happening in planning policy, environmental health, and community services. 

 

9. The Council should adopt the use of a pre-validation checklist for planning applications – see 

draft at Appendix I. 

 

10. The Council should place specific emphasis on ensuring it has a sustainable procurement 

policy. 

 

11. The Council’s Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan should be produced by June 2020 to 

allow its recommendations to feed into the next available budget cycle (for 2021/22).   

 

12. The Council should immediately include the consideration of climate change and the 

environment as part of the decision-making process of the Council, the Executive and the 

Senior Management Team.  All relevant reporting templates will need to be updated to 

reflect this additional requirement and we are pleased to note that this work is already 

underway. 

 

13. There are a number of existing groups that the Council participates in or supports.  The 

effectiveness of these should be evaluated before the merits of setting up an Allerdale 

Partnership Climate Change Group as suggested in the Motion are considered.  The Council 

will need to ensure it is satisfied that all stakeholders are kept engaged in our response to 

the challenge of climate change but how it does that is a matter for it and the stakeholders 

to decide and review on a continuing basis. 

 

14. The Council should work closely with town and parish councils across Allerdale, many of 

whom have already started taking action in relation to climate change. 

 

15. Similarly, the Council should work closely with the retail and other industries in order to 

learn from and/or influence their climate change activities. 

 

16. The Council should respond to the specific concerns of young people and address their vision 

for the future locally and globally. 

 

17. The Council should ensure that it continually learns from the experience of others, including 

CAfS, the Cumbria LEP, other local authorities, local industry and all those organisations 

listed on the stakeholder map at Appendix G. 

 

18. The Council should consider how best to continue to engage with the wider public, to 

improve their understanding of what they can do in terms of recycling and other climate 

change related activities and to encourage them to work with the Council in order to meet 

the challenge of climate change.   

 

 

 

 

Page 10



 

List of Appendices 

 

A  Motion to Council on Climate Change (25 September 2019) 

B  List of Members on the Task and Finish Group 

C  Suggested remit for the Council’s Climate Change Group 

D Key reports considered by the TFG 

E  Summary Report from the Stakeholder Workshop (17 January 2020) 

F Suggested Climate Change training courses  

G Stakeholder Map 

H Proposed draft Action Plan 

I Proposed pre-validation checklist for planning applications 

J  Glossary 

  

Page 11



 

Appendix A - Motion to Council on Climate Change (25 September 2019) 

 

This Council is committed to reducing carbon emissions, both as an organisation and as the Local 

Planning Authority and resolves to go further than the UK100 Agreement and therefore requests 

that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee considers, within the next six months, how the council 

can:  

• Work with partners in local sustainability organisations and Parish, Town and County Councils to 

help to deliver this goal through strategies, plans and shared resources;  

• Pledge to make Allerdale carbon neutral by 2030 where this does not negatively impact on our 

communities;  

• Call on Government to provide the policy changes & funding to make the 2030 deadline possible;  

• Report to full Council with the actions the council will take to address this emergency, within six 

months, in time for their recommendations to be funded in the next budget cycle;  

• Establish an ethical procurement framework to ensure suppliers reduce their carbon footprint;  

And that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee also considers the following actions:  

• Ensure that political and chief officer leadership teams embed this work in all areas of the Council 

Plan and take responsibility for reducing, as rapidly as possible, the carbon emissions resulting from 

the Council’s activities, ensuring that any recommendations are fully costed and that the Executive 

and Scrutiny functions review council activities taking account of production and consumption 

emissions and produce an action plan within 6 months, together with budget actions and a 

measured baseline;  

• Request that Scrutiny consider the impact of climate change and the environment when reviewing 

Council policies and strategies;  

• Work with, influence and inspire partners across the district, county and region to help deliver this 

goal through all relevant strategies, plans and shared resources by developing a series of meetings, 

events and partner workshops;  

• Set up an Allerdale Partnership Climate Change group, drawing on expertise from Councillors, 

residents, young citizens, climate science and solutions experts, businesses, skills providers, Cumbria 

Action for Sustainability, Sustainable Keswick and Riversmeet and other relevant parties.  

The Group will consider strategies and actions being developed by the Council and other partner 

organisations and develop an area wide strategy in line with a target of net zero emissions by 2030, 

engaging other anchor institutions and SMEs. It will also recommend ways to maximise local benefits 

of these actions in other sectors such as employment, health, agriculture, transport and the 

economy;  

• Request that the Council and partners take steps to proactively include young people in the 

process, ensuring that they have a voice in shaping the future;  

• Ensure that all reports in preparation for the 2020/21 budget cycle and Investment Strategy will 

take into account the actions the council will take to address this emergency;  

• Add the voice of Allerdale Borough Council to the calls on the UK Government to provide the 

powers, resources and help with funding to make this possible;  

Page 12



 

• In recognition of the seriousness of the financial constraints that the Council faces, and the 

expectation that both the development and implementation of many measures above are likely to 

be contingent on securing significant additional extra funding, that the Borough’s local MPs be called 

upon to ensure that Central government provides the powers, resources and funding to make this 

possible, and that Council writes to them to seek their commitments;  

• Consider other actions that could be recommended (but are not restricted to): low carbon energy 

production and storage, providing electric vehicle infrastructure and encouraging the use of electric 

vehicles within the fleet, workforce and wider community, integrating low carbon technologies into 

operational assets and projects, increasing the efficiency of buildings, prioritising these measures for 

housing to address fuel poverty; proactively using our local planning powers to accelerate the 

delivery of net carbon new developments and communities, coordinating a series of information and 

training events to raise awareness and share good practice;  

• Where needed, officer reports to the Council Executive and Full Council contain impact 

assessments on Climate Change that include Carbon Emission Appraisals, including presenting 

alternative approaches which reduce carbon emissions where possible.’ 

Page 13



 

Appendix B – List of Members on the Task and Finish Group 

Councillor Nicky Cockburn – chair 

Councillor Allan Daniels 

Councillor Janet Farebrother 

Councillor Iain Greaney 

Councillor Sally Lansbury 

Councillor Elaine Lynch 

Councillor Alan Tyson 

 

 

Appendix C – Suggested Remit for the Climate Change Group 

 

We recommend that it should include a maximum of eight elected members, working with relevant 

officers with the necessary authority to commit resource to our efforts to combat climate change.   

As necessary, the Group would involve external experts in meetings to ensure the Council was kept 

informed of the latest developments in this area and to allow for external scrutiny of, and input to, 

our proposed work programme.  A key piece of work for the Group would be overseeing the 

development of this Council’s Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan and then reporting on 

progress to all stakeholders.   

 

 

Appendix D - Key reports considered by the TFG 

 

This is not a comprehensive list, nor is it in order of priority.  It is simply a flavour of the sorts of 

information that has been brought to the attention of the Task and Finish Group as it has taken this 

work forward. 

 

Allerdale Local Plan 

Cumbria Joint Health Strategy 

Friends of the Earth’s Action Plan for local authorities 

A Carbon Baseline for Cumbria (Small World Consulting) 

A suggested process for establishing a climate change impact baseline (Cumbria Local Authorities 

Climate Change Policy Group) 

 

 

  

Page 14



 

Appendix E – Summary Report from the Stakeholder Workshop (17 January 2020)  

 

Introduction 

 

1.  As part of its work to look at how the Council could best develop a climate change strategy and 

action plan, the Climate Change Task and Finish Group had invited a number of external 

stakeholders to a workshop to discuss the Group’s work to date and to input into their thinking 

going forward.  A full list of the participants is attached at Annex A. 

 

The Workshop 

 

2.  Councillor (Cllr) Iain Greaney opened the workshop by welcoming everyone and briefly running 

through the proposed agenda for the day.  The workshop would be informal in nature and 

participants were encouraged to share their views with the Members of the Task and Finish Group 

who were all in attendance.  Cllr Sally Lansbury took us back to the Climate Change motion adopted 

by full Council in September 2019 and then explained the steps that were being taken to address the 

commitments in that motion and the proposed next steps in terms of the TFG’s Report to the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee and ultimately back to full Council.  Both Cllrs stressed the 

importance of the workshop and to the need for the Council to develop a genuine partnership with 

external stakeholders in order to be able to address the challenge of climate change. 

 

3.  Participants were then invited to introduce themselves and to highlight two or three issues or 

concerns that were particularly important to them.  The main points raised during this session 

included: 

 

 It was positive that the Council was hosting this workshop, but concern that things were not 

moving fast enough. 

 Concern about the predicted rise in sea levels and the impact of flooding. 

 The need to improve recycling, waste management and wider flood prevention measures.   

 An end to road building and widening, along with an increase in the use of electric vehicles. 

 Closer working with the County Council to ensure the retention of existing bus services and 

the reinstatement of the Keswick to Penrith railway. 

 A greener internet. 

 Better public education. 

 Improved biodiversity and land management. 

 

4.  For the second part of the workshop, the TFG had taken the thirteen climate change related 

themes and printed them out on to large pieces of paper, along with some suggested actions that 

had been identified for each area.  The themes had been grouped and set out in four work stations 

and the participants were invited to circulate around each of the work stations, engage in 

discussions with representatives from the TFG and give their views on the proposed next steps as 

well as identifying any gaps and possible sources of information and so on.  The output from these 

discussions is summarised below. 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



 

Planning Policies 

 

 More resources needed to enforce building and planning regulations 

 Use solar energy on all commercial buildings 

 Utilise wave energy and rainwater harvesting 

 Revise planning approvals to reduce carbon footprint; improve energy efficiency, insulation, 

use more solar on roofs; do not build on the green belt! 

 Stop building near to the coast and on flood plains 

 Consider biodiversity issues as part of pre-application stage (e.g. hedgehog runs and swift 

bricks) 

 

Management of Land 

 

 Inter-agency working with landowners to plant trees for flood prevention 

 Hold more meetings to talk about problems and how to solve them 

 Less grass cutting – do not cut some areas until early August to let wild flower seeds to set as 

this will encourage pollinating insects like bees 

 Public awareness and engagement 

 Identifying good farming practices and learning from them – spread the message 

 Slow the flow (of water) – contact the Forestry Commission 

 Promote and support methods of regenerative agriculture – agroforestry/woodland 

pasture/mob (rotational) grazing/less but better meat/organic methods 

 

Built Environment 

 

 Reducing the felling of mature trees in housing and other building developments (re-

planting, not removal!) 

 Natural drainage systems – slow the flow, promote biodiversity and improve sense of 

wellbeing 

 See FoE Action Plan on buildings 

 Local procurement to stimulate and sustain local economy 

 Environment Agency need to be more proactive 

 Promote more wildlife and green space in residents’ gardens 

 Visit and lobby MPs for improved planning policy and building regulations 

 When approving new buildings - avoid flood plains; prioritise data on flooding effects; only 

approve if proven data exists to state no impact on flooding 

 Buildings should be constructed to current eco standards.  Need to ensure these are kept to 

via inspections – do not rely on self-regulation. 

 

Domestic Energy Use/Savings 

 

 Cannot afford to go easy with the climate change emergency 

 Produce an Allerdale Environmental Dashboard showing key data like energy mix, supply 

and demand 

 Design more green houses and give every public building solar panels 

 Who do you (Council) buy your energy from? 

 Improved energy efficiency through planning – e.g. sash windows 

Page 16



 

 Cut the cost of LED light bulbs for low income households 

 Cumbria Action for Sustainability run courses on energy efficiency in housing etc… They 

could help with promotion of better insulation etc… 

 Council needs to audit/monitor the quality of works carried out.  Solid wall insulation was 

badly done in many cases and nobody was held responsible. 

 Home insulation grants, solar panels, revise planning policy to demand eco-housing 

 

Reducing Paper and Printing Costs (Allerdale Borough Council internal) 

 

 Use less paper and use green energy for technology used during meetings 

 Examine communication systems – hard copy and digital (internally and with the public) – 

with the aim of reducing paper and printing costs 

 Ecosia search engine – plants trees for internet usage 

 

Waste Reduction/Recycling 

 

 Adopt circular economy waste policies in plans and contracts 

 Recycling bins in Allerdale offices and at events, including public spaces 

 Support schemes that promote reusable packaging like the Keswick eco-cup 

 Inform people why we need to recycle 

 Better information on bins explaining what is acceptable plastic waste 

 Repair and re-use schemes and “swaps” 

 Running all recycling waste together for integrated sorting – the technology exists – to 

reduce waste transport, bins for collection and improves recycling uptake 

 Recycling facilities at all public bins in the borough 

 Discourage fly-tipping by reducing the prices for collection of large waste items 

 Stop offering plastic cups in Allerdale offices 

 Kerbside self-sorted collection is only optimal when people are willing to do so 

 Council to encompass beach waste pick-ups? 

 Use more aluminium cans so that they can be smelted down and recycled as more cans or 

other appliances 

 Coordinate, via the website, litter clearance – there is a lot of desire to do this 

 All waste should be regarded as a potential resource 

 Promote vegan/vegetarian meals/food 

 Allerdale should look at “Fair Share” schemes in order to reduce food waste 

 Collect tetra packs and forward to Carlisle or Barrow for recycling (talk to TetraPak as they 

offer advice and financial support) 

 Check what is happening at Marchwood waste recycling plant (Hampshire).  Large space and 

bring and buy area so that good reusable products do not end up in landfill 

 

Partnerships 

 

 Lead by example while recognising we cannot be perfect 

 Work with Leisure Centre management to increase the use of solar panels 

 

 

 

Page 17



 

Energy Supply/Usage (Allerdale Borough Council internal) 

 

 Community Energy 

 Ground source heat pumps/exchange and more solar and more wave energy 

 Re-use! 

 www.cumbrianenergyrevolution.org.uk 

 Sort out your own house as far as energy and waste are concerned and then lead by 

example 

 Change to a green tariff (Good Energy and Ecotricity are two good examples) 

 Protect the most vulnerable (food poverty and resilience) 

 Use solar schemes to decarbonise energy use 

 Anaerobic digestion and biogas 

 Environmental audits of all council buildings 

 Energy Auction implications (Green Tariffs) – domestic and business both involved 

 Look at the FoE Action Plan 

 

Purchasing Goods and Services (Allerdale Borough Council internal) 

 

 Use recyclable post-it notes and other stationery! 

 Reduce meat consumption and stop using plastic cups – bring your own cup? 

 Climate change teacher in every school 

 Local procurement 

 

Adaptation (safety and resilience) 

 

 Upland reforestation slows upland run-off; proactive flood and drought planning strategies; 

prevent groundwater flooding by comprehensive drainage management 

 Include sods in planning policies 

 Engage the Environment Agency  as a partner for early warning systems 

 In work places, reduce the temperature and encourage people to wear a jumper 

 Less cutting of the grass in public areas.  Do not cut some areas until late July to let wild 

flowers seed themselves – good for pollinators 

 Mob (rotational) grazing for farmers – increases carbon soil stocks; natural food 

management; reduces the need for artificial input; and improves biodiversity 

 If it is yellow, let it mellow; if it is brown, flush it down – better flushing facilities in toilets 

 

Water 

 

 Environmental audit based on Eco School approach – each member of staff; whole 

organisation approach and the Council itself as an entity – leads to a list of priorities and and 

Action Plan (this is what the UTC did) 

 Assess the potential for green roofs – bus shelters as well as buildings 

 Use of grey water 

 Re-use of washing machine water 

 

 

 

Page 18

http://www.cumbrianenergyrevolution.org.uk/


 

Transport (greenhouse gases, air quality) (Allerdale Borough Council internal) 

 

 Cheaper or free public transport; less air travel; less long haul flights; more electric charging 

points in car parks 

 Car clubs 

 Roll out pool bicycle scheme to include cars and then roll out a car pooling/sharing scheme 

to the public (parish/town councils) 

 Improve joined up public transport infrastructure/electricity fleet 

 Virtual meetings (need improved broadband for this) 

 Protect the most vulnerable as they are the least resilient 

 Replace Allerdale’s vehicles with electric ones 

 Install a dedicated full time climate change officer 

 

Raising Awareness 

 

 Suggest this theme is renamed “Marketing Strategy for Climate Change Awareness – 

improving involvement and contributions” 

 Climate change teacher in every school 

 80% of people are very concerned, so awareness is already there 

 Need a dedicated Member and Officer 

 Proactive Messages – local TV; Ads/Articles in local publications; Twitter; Website; Radio; 

Allerdale Services leaflet; Re-use Campaigns; Talks and Courses from Partners; Explore 

incentives (there are savings to be made/refill schemes/reduce rubbish) 

 Share waste figures and energy use 

 Use more social media 

 

And Finally 

 

5.  The last part of the workshop allowed participants to share any final thoughts about the day.  It 

was agreed that while it had been a positive workshop, time was running out and we really needed 

to build on the good conversations that had been started and move forward.  Cllr Greaney 

confirmed that everyone would receive a copy of the report from the workshop and be kept 

informed as the work was taken forward.  There was also agreement that similar workshops/events 

would be held in the future in order to keep people informed and to hold the Council to account for 

its actions.  Finally, Cllr Greaney thanked everyone for giving up their time to attend and hoped they 

would continue to support the Council’s efforts in this important area. 

 

List of Attendees  

 

Julia Robinson (West Cumbria Rivers Trust 

Jill Perry (Green Party) 

Terence Sloan (Sustainable Keswick) 

Joe Human (Sustainable Keswick) 

Fiona Heslam (Energy UTC), plus two students Nick and Deacon 

Steve Irving 

Ruth Balogh (Friends of the Earth/Climate Emergency West Cumbria) 

Jack Lenox (Green Party) 

Page 19



 

Cllr Nicky Cockburn 

Cllr Sally Lansbury 

Cllr Iain Greaney 

Cllr Alan Tyson 

Cllr Allan Daniels 

Cllr Elaine Lynch 

Cllr Janet Farebrother 

Ian Hinde (Officer Allerdale Borough Council) 

Richard Griffin (Officer Allerdale Borough Council) 

  

Page 20



 

Appendix F - Suggested Climate Change training courses  

 

During the course of the TFG’s work a number of climate change related training providers have 

been brought to our attention.  No work has been done to establish which provider is the best or 

which course best fits the needs of the Council, but the links to the websites of those concerned are 

below for ease of reference. 

 

Centre for Alternative Technology (Zero Carbon Britain) www.cat.org.uk 

 

Cumbria Action for Sustainability www.cafs.org.uk 

 

Ashden (Local Authority Climate Change Toolkit) www.ashden.org 

 

 

 

  

Page 21

http://www.cat.org.uk/
http://www.cafs.org.uk/
http://www.ashden.org/


 

Appendix G – Stakeholder map 

 

 

 

  

  Dept of Business 

Energy & 

Industrial 

Strategy             

Our Green 
Future 

Policy Doc 

Dept for the 
Environment 
 

North West 
Energy 

Strategy 

Zero Carbon Cumbria 

Partnership 

Cumbria Action for 

Sustainability 

Energy and Clean 

Growth Panel 

Cumbria Chief Exec 

and Leaders Board 

Climate Change 

Working Group 
Climate Change 

Policy Group 
(Officers) 

Cumbria Local 
Energy 

Partnership 

Joint Public 
Health Board 

Public 
Health 

Strategy 

Allerdale Borough Council Climate Change Group and 
Portfolio Holder/Leader 

Full Council 

Allerdale Borough 
Council Climate 

Change Strategy and 
Action Plan 2020 -

2030 
Annual Report to 

Council 

Sustainabilty Charities & 

Organisations e.g. 

Friends of the Earth, 

Cumbria Action for 

Sustainability, Woodland 

Trust, Natural England 

Community Sustainability groups: 
Parish Councils 

Climate Emergency West Cumbria,   
Sustainable Keswick, Community 

Energy Schemes 
Youth Groups, Youth Councils, 

schools and colleges 

Allerdale Council 

Waste 
reduction/recycling 

 Paper/printing costs 

 Transport (GHG, air 
quality) 

 Energy supply/usage  

Goods & services 

 Planning Policies 

Management of land 

 Built Environment 

Adaptation 

Water 

 Raising awareness 

 Partnerships 
 

Residents 
Businesses 

Communities 

Other Local authorities 
with Climate Change 

Strategies 

Key 
Strategies            

People             

Allerdale involvement  

Proposals                         
 

 

Page 22



 

Appendix H – Proposed draft Action Plan 

 

ABC reducing paper and printing costs 

Outcome Action Lead Target date 

Identification of possible 
energy efficiencies and 
waste reduction 

Review departmental and central 
printing strategy 

  

Reduction in paper waste Review potential for further 
reducing volume of paper for 
Committee work 

  

Reduction in waste Continue re-use schemes when 
disposing of furniture/ equipment  

  

Reduction in greenhouse 
gases by reducing travel 

Consider extending the use of 
video conferencing 

  

   

ABC transport (greenhouse gases, air quality) 

Outcome Action Lead Target date 

More sustainable travel 
for staff and members 

Review existing car user policy to 
identify sustainable travel 
incentives  

  

More sustainable travel 
for staff 

Consider staff pool bicycle 
scheme 

  

Reduction in fuel 
consumption 

Regularly promote sensible 
driving message to staff and 
members 

  

Reduction in greenhouse 
gases 

Consider impact of on staff and 
the community in accessing and 
delivery of services at current and 
potential Council Centres. 

  

Reduction in greenhouse 
gases by main partners 

Work with main partners to 
achieve reduction in energy use 
and greenhouse gases in the 
delivery of Council services, 
particularly when planning 
replacement of vehicles 

  

 

ABC energy supply / usage 

Outcome Action Lead Target date 

Reduction in energy use 
 

Carry out review of energy use in 
Council buildings to identify 
potential for energy efficiencies 
and produce prioritised action 
plan 

  

Implement prioritised action plan 
for energy efficiencies in Council 
buildings 

  

Investigate the potential for 
installing renewable energy 

  

Page 23



 

generation in new and existing 
Council buildings 

Reduction in greenhouse 
gas emissions 

Review energy suppliers for 
Council building and seek to 
move towards 100% supply from 
‘green’ sources or suppliers 

  

  

ABC purchasing of goods and services 

Outcome Action Lead Target date 

Increase the purchase of 
sustainable goods and 
services 

Review the Council’s 
procurement policy to take into 
account climate change 

  

More sustainable 
purchase of food and 
reduction in waste 

Review the Council’s use of 
outside caterers and include need 
for locally sourced food and 
reusable/recyclable utensils 

  

 

Domestic energy use / savings 

Outcome Action Lead Target date 

Reduction in fuel poverty. 
  
Reduction in energy use 
 

Work with Energy Saving Trust 
Advice Centre (ESTAC) to 
promote energy efficiencies in 
households 

  

Running energy efficiency 
schemes including targeting 
deprivation and fuel poverty, 
including working with Housing 
Associations, environmental 
groups and other agencies 

  

Reduced consumption of 
energy and reduces fuel 
poverty 
 

Improve awareness of funding 
available for energy efficiency 
amongst front line staff, visiting 
officers, Customer Service 
Advisors and partners 

  

Promote availability of energy 
saving measures in homes in 
conjunction with ESTAC 

  

  

Planning policies 

Outcome Action Lead Target date 

Future developments are 
more sustainable 

Regularly review planning policies 
to incorporate sustainable 
development taking into account 
the needs and character of the 
area through the Local Plan 

  

Examine existing supplementary 
planning guidance for sustainable 
development and determine if 

  

Page 24



 

any change is required to bring 
guidance in line with best 
practice 

Positive effect on tackling 
climate change 

Review existing main Council 
policies and consider making 
amendments to assist in tackling 
climate change 

  

 

Management of land 

Outcome Action Lead Target date 

Positive effect on 
landscape and habitats in 
the AONB 

Progress the Solway Coast AONB 
Management Plan  

  

Raise awareness of 
climate change issues in 
AONB area 

Development of management 
plans for the Council’s nature 
reserves at Harrington and 
Siddick Ponds 

  

Nature reserves become 
sustainable 

Increased community awareness 
of climate change 

  

  

Built environment 

Outcome Action Lead Target date 

Development is more 
sustainable 

Promote higher building quality 
standards that include 
sustainable and green building 
principles 

  

  

Adaptation (safety and resilience) 

Outcome Action Lead Target date 

Reduction in the impact 
of climate change on our 
services and community 

Assess the risk associated with 
climate change for the Council 
Services and our communities 
and produce plan to adapt 
accordingly 

  

Increased river and 
coastal flood resilience 
and safety 

Assess risk for people, livelihoods 
and prosperity 
Ensure access to flood-readiness 
information (for evacuation)  
Ensure access to flood-resilience 
and support information 

  

Reduce flood probability 
and severity 

Improving river defences NFM 
catchment management (EA) 
Urban run-off through SUDS 
systems 
Managed realignment on coast 

  

Health, wellbeing, 
productivity at higher 
temperatures 

Adopt health systems to protect 
people 

  

Page 25



 

Monitor temperatures in all 
critical areas 

Sufficient public water for 
agriculture, industry, 
council use 

Develop goals to reduce water 
leakage, wastage 

  

Less resilience on UK and 
international food trade 

Protect below market value 
(BMV) land to grow crops for 
local consumption 

  

Support development of 
horticultural businesses 

  

Avoid non-native pests, 
diseases 

Prevent import of pests, diseases 
through local docks 

  

  

Water 

Outcome Action Lead Target date 

Reduction in water use Review results of trial of using 
water saving devices in Council 
buildings and assess scope for 
extending 

  

Assess scope for reuse of grey 
water in Council buildings and 
prioritise for action 

  

Raise awareness of staff on water 
saving measures 

  

Reduction in flooding Incorporate sustainable drainage 
systems into Council 
developments where possible 

  

  

Raising Awareness 

Outcome Action Lead Target date 

Increased action by 
community on tackling 
climate change 

Devise a programme to raise 
awareness of the community on 
climate change in conjunction 
with partners 

  

Increased awareness of 
climate change 

Support the work of the network 
of local partnerships in raising 
awareness of climate change in 
Cumbria 

  

Increased awareness of 
staff and members about 
climate change 

Provide and co-ordinate training 
on climate change for staff and 
members, particularly front line 
staff 

  

  

Partnerships 

Outcome  Action Lead Target date 

Reduced impact on 
climate change 

Work with key partners to 
develop and deliver strategic 
projects which deliver best 

  

Page 26



 

practices on sustainable 
development.  

Reduced impact on 
climate 

Work with key partners to 
develop plans to address the 
causes and impact of climate 
change according to local 
priorities 

  

Reduction in energy use Work with Greenwich Leisure Ltd 
(GLL) to identify energy savings in 
Council leisure centres  

  

 

Waste reduction / recycling 

Outcome Action Lead Target date 

Increase in materials 
recycled 

Improve recycling facilities in 
Allerdale offices 

  

Reduction in waste 
collected. Increase in 
materials recycled. 

Extend provision of doorstep 
recycling facilities in accordance 
with annual programme 

  

Minimisation of residual 
waste and work with CCC 
to develop action plan 
including new recycling 
sites 

Provision of recycling facilities   

Minimisation of residual 
waste and at source 

Raise awareness of staff and 
public on waste minimisation and 
recycling 

  

Reduction in waste 
collected. Increase in 
materials recycled. 

Review beach cleaning activities 
to include recycling 

  

Minimisation of residual 
waste 

Work with Cumbria County 
Council on provision of new 
waste recycling centres 

  

 

  

Page 27



 

Appendix I – Proposed pre-validation checklist for planning applications 

 

 

 

1. Location & Transport 

Policies achieve climate neutrality by: lowering greenhouse gas emissions by reducing the need 

to travel and distance travelled; increasing the proportion of travel by sustainable modes such as 

walking, cycling, public transport and lower carbon vehicles; and reducing climate change 

vulnerability by locating development away from areas liable to flooding. 

Have you considered including measures to reduce dependence on private car- borne transport 

and influence a shift to more sustainable modes of travel? 

Does the proposal provide appropriate levels and standards of parking (including cycle parking)? 

Will the development incorporate facilities for charging plug-in and other ultra-low emission 

vehicles as appropriate? 

Have you submitted a Travel Statement (for smaller-scale developments) or Travel Plan (for 

proposals that generate significant traffic) with your proposal? 

Does the location of the proposed development minimise distances to the main employment 

centres, shops, recreation and community facilities and schools? 

Have you ensured the development is located away from an area liable to flooding, and is not 

dependent on transport links (roads, footpaths etc.) liable to flooding? 

2. Layout & Design 

Policies achieve climate neutrality by: lowering greenhouse gas emissions by reducing energy 

demands for heating and cooling; and building in resilience to the impacts of climate change such 

as flooding and heat through good layout and design. 

Does the proposed site layout maximise the potential for passive solar gain? 

Have you considered how buildings could be designed to maximise the capture and use of passive 

solar energy? 

Have you considered designing in measures to prevent excess solar gain in summer? 

Have you designed the layout to use landform and landscape to benefit from shelter? 

Have you considered the potential for passive cooling and ventilation in summer? 

Have you considered how existing and proposed trees and shrubs could be used to provide shade 

for car parks and other private and public open space? 

Page 28



 

 

 

 

3. Energy and carbon reduction 

Policies achieve climate neutrality by: reducing greenhouse gases by promoting developments 

that reduce the need for energy, use energy efficiently, supply energy efficiently and use 

renewable or low or zero carbon technologies. 

Have you considered designing in measures to maximise energy efficiency? 

Have you explored ways to secure a proportion of energy demand through the installation of 

renewable and/or low and zero carbon technologies? 

Have you checked whether your proposed development falls within a ‘Potential 

District Heat Area’, or a zone requiring buildings to be ‘CHP Ready’? 

4. Water & Drainage 

Policies achieve climate neutrality by: incorporating adaptation measures to ensure 

development is resilient to increased risk of flooding or droughts; and reducing water demand 

and increasing more efficient use of water as periods of drought increase. 

Have you considered designing in water efficient fittings and appliances? 

Have you considered incorporating rainwater recycling and harvesting systems? 

Have you considered incorporating recycling and harvesting facilities for grey water? 

Have you considered designing in measures to minimise surface water run-off e.g. minimising 

paved areas and impermeable surfaces? 

Have you considered incorporating sustainable urban drainage (SUDS) into your development 

proposal? 

Have you considered how any SUDS techniques used will achieve wider ecosystem functions?  

e.g. contribution to amenity, recreation, wildlife etc. 

Have you defined maintenance responsibilities for any proposed SUDS? 

5. Waste & Materials 

Policies achieve climate neutrality by: facilitating the reduction, recycling and reuse of waste and 

providing opportunities to improve materials resource efficiency to reduce greenhouse gases. 

Have you considered how the design of the development can facilitate the reduction of waste and 

the recycling and composting of waste generated by occupants? 

Have you adopted procedures which will minimise construction waste e.g. re-use and recycle 

waste? 

Page 29



 

 

 

 

 

  

Have you considered using locally and/or responsibly sourced building materials? 

Does the proposal encourage the use of re-used, recycled, recyclable and durable products e.g. 

salvage material or re-using/recycling demolition materials for hardcore and aggregate? 

6. Green Infrastructure & Ecology 

Policies achieve climate neutrality by: adapting the built environment to climate change impacts 

such as flooding, high temperatures and the urban heat island effect, whilst delivering a wide 

range of additional social, economic and environmental benefits such as biodiversity 

enhancements. 

Does the proposal include the provision of green and blue spaces? E.g. parks, green corridors, 

water bodies and sustainable drainage systems. 

Have you considered how green and blue spaces within the development will be connected to the 

wider green infrastructure assets of the Borough? 

If the development involves the loss of any open space, is alternative and equivalent or better 

provision made elsewhere, or is the development directly related to the enhancement of the 

open space? 

Will the proposal avoid any loss of trees, hedgerows and other vegetation of amenity and/or 

environmental significance? 

Have you considered adopting measures to conserve, enhance and/or restore biodiversity in and 

around the development? 

Will you be protecting existing ecological features from damage during site preparation and 

completion of construction works where practicable? 

If the proposed development is likely to cause adverse impacts to designated landscape sites, 

have adequate mitigation measures been proposed? 

Does the proposal provide for on-going management of green and blue spaces, including 

biodiversity habitats? 

Page 30



 

Appendix J – Glossary 

 

Within the literature and discussions around climate change, several terms are used which may not 

be fully understood at first glance. This is an initial attempt to bring together current interpretations 

of these terms and acronyms. 

 

BIOMASS 

There are four types of biomass in use today — wood and agricultural products, solid waste, landfill 

gas and biogas, and alcohol fuels like ethanol or biodiesel. Most biomass used today is home grown 

energy with wood—logs, chips, bark, and sawdust—accounting for about 44 percent of biomass 

energy. 

CARBON CAPTURE 

Carbon Capture and Storage (CCS) is a technology that can capture up to 90% of the carbon dioxide 

(CO2) emissions produced from the use of fossil fuels in electricity generation and industrial 

processes, preventing the carbon dioxide from entering the atmosphere. 

The CCS chain consists of three parts; capturing the carbon dioxide, transporting the carbon dioxide, 

and securely storing the carbon dioxide emissions, underground in depleted oil and gas fields or 

deep saline aquifer formations. 

Furthermore, the use of CCS with renewable biomass is one of the few carbon abatement 

technologies that can be used in a 'carbon-negative' mode – actually taking carbon dioxide out of 

the atmosphere. 

CARBON NEUTRAL 

Carbon neutral means that while some emissions are still being generated by a building/process 

these emissions are being offset somewhere else making the overall net emissions zero. 

Carbon neutral is a term used where the carbon emissions caused by an entity such as a company, 

service, product or event, have been balanced out by funding an equivalent amount of carbon 

savings elsewhere in the world. 

These savings are generated through helping to fund renewable energy projects and energy 

efficiency projects, many of which bring additional social and community benefits in developing 

countries as well as reducing greenhouse gases. 

CARBON OFFSET  

Carbon offsetting is a process by which organisations and individuals ‘balance’ out their carbon 

footprints by funding emission reductions elsewhere, which can ‘offset’ their own activities and 

emissions.   

For example, to offset the environmental impact of a flight, you could work out the emissions 

associated with that journey and purchase a carbon offset which guaranteed an equal emissions 

reduction elsewhere. Offset types include investments in renewable energy or tree planting and 

offset projects often take place in developing countries where the money invested provides benefits 

in the local community.  

Page 31



 

Offsetting is sometimes seen as controversial, especially if it takes the place of efforts at first 

reducing emissions through behaviour or operational change. It can also be perceived as an ‘easy’ 

way to shift the burden of action away from those who are more affluent. 

Carbon offsetting means compensating for the carbon-dioxide pollution you're making (your carbon 

footprint) by preventing the same amount of pollution from happening somewhere else. More 

precisely, one carbon offset means compensating for emitting one tonne of carbon dioxide (CO2) 

into the atmosphere by preventing a tonne of CO2 from entering the atmosphere elsewhere on 

Earth (for example, by investing in renewable energy) or by removing a tonne of CO2 that's already 

up there (by supporting something like tree planting—since trees pull CO2 from the air when they 

grow). 

CARBON STORAGE 

See Carbon Capture. 

CO-BENEFITS 

Co-benefits are the added benefits we get when we act to control climate change, above and 

beyond the direct benefits of a more stable climate. They are sometimes referred to as "multiple 

benefits" or "synergies". They do not include the direct benefits of climate policy arising from a more 

stable climate. 

One of the most obvious examples is cleaner air. There is a big synergy here, because fossil fuels are 

not only the main source of the greenhouse gases that cause climate change, but also the main 

source of air pollution worldwide. Tackling climate change by burning less coal, oil and gas will have 

the extra benefit of cutting emissions of soot, acidic gases, ozone-forming gases and toxic 

compounds that cause heart and lung diseases and cancer. 

GREENHOUSE GASES 

Greenhouse gases are carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4), nitrous oxide (N2O), ozone (O3) and 

water vapour (H2O). These are referred to collectively as CO2E or CO2 Equivalents.  

NET ZERO 

Unlike other terms, such as carbon neutral, there is no commonly agreed definition of what 

constitutes net zero emissions. However, this may change: in September 2019, the ‘Science Based 

Targets initiative’ published a discussion paper – ‘Towards a science-based approach to climate 

neutrality in the corporate sector’ - containing a working definition of net zero to inform corporate 

net zero targets.  

The paper describes net zero for a company as ‘achieving a state in which the activities within the 

value chain of a company result in no net impact on the climate from greenhouse gas emissions. This 

is achieved by reducing value chain greenhouse gas emissions, in line with 1.5°C pathways, and by 

balancing the impact of any remaining greenhouse gas emissions with an appropriate amount of 

carbon removal’. 

SEQUESTRATION 

Sequestration usually refers to carbon sequestration, the long-term storage of carbon in plants, soils, 

geologic formations, and the ocean. Carbon sequestration occurs both naturally and as a result of 

anthropogenic activities and typically refers to the storage of carbon that has the immediate 

potential to become carbon dioxide gas. In response to growing concerns about climate change 

Page 32



 

resulting from increased carbon dioxide concentrations in the atmosphere, considerable interest has 

been drawn to the possibility of increasing the rate of carbon sequestration through changes in land 

use and forestry and also through geoengineering techniques such as carbon capture and storage. 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS 

The Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), also known as the Global Goals, were adopted by all 

United Nations Member States in 2015 as a universal call to action to end poverty, protect the 

planet and ensure that all people enjoy peace and prosperity by 2030. 

The 17 SDGs are integrated—that is, they recognize that action in one area will affect outcomes in 

others, and that development must balance social, economic and environmental sustainability. 

Through the pledge to Leave No One Behind, countries have committed to fast-track progress for 

those furthest behind first. That is why the SDGs are designed to bring the world to several life-

changing ‘zeros’, including zero poverty, hunger, AIDS and discrimination against women and girls. 

Everyone is needed to reach these ambitious targets. The creativity, knowhow, technology and 

financial resources from all of society is necessary to achieve the SDGs in every context. 

ZERO CARBON 

Zero carbon means that no carbon emissions are being produced from a product/service e.g. zero-

carbon electricity could be provided by a 100% renewable energy supplier. 

  

ACRONYMS 

COP25 = The 25th United Nations Conference of Parties climate change conference, held in Madrid, 

December 2019; COP26 will be held in Glasgow during November 2020. 

GHG = greenhouse gas/es.  

GGR = greenhouse gas removal  

IPCC = the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change 

SBTi = Science Based Targets initiative 

SDGs = sustainable development goals 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 21 February 
 

Executive – 18 March  
 

Strategic Commissioning and Procurement Strategy  
 

  
The Reason for the Decision                          
 

A revised Strategic Commissioning and 
Procurement Strategy 2020 -30 reflects 
changes in best practice and ensures 
that the Council pursues sustainable 
outcomes, value for money and 
continuous improvement in its 
commissioning and procurement of 
goods, services and works.   

  
Summary of options considered  Allerdale Council first published a 

Strategic Commissioning and 
Procurement Strategy in March 2016.  
This is an updated Strategy, which takes 
account of the 10 year ambition and 
priorities in the Council Strategy.    

  
Recommendations That the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee comments on the draft 
strategy and makes any 
recommendations to Executive.  
 
That Executive considers any comments 
from the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and adopts the draft 
Strategic Commissioning and 
Procurement Strategy 2020 – 30.    

  
Financial /  Resource Implications There is no direct financial implications of 

the Strategic Commissioning and 
Procurement Strategy although cashable 
and non-cashable savings are 
anticipated through more strategic 
sourcing.   

  
Legal / Governance Implications European Regulations were transposed 

into UK Law on 26th February 2015. The 
EU Procurement Directives and the UK 
Public Procurement Regulations will 
continue to apply during the transition 
period of 31st January 2020 to 31st 
December 2020.   

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



  
  
Community Safety Implications None  
  
Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications 

None  

  
Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed 

Completed  

  
Wards Affected All  
  
The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities 

A strategic commissioning approach will 
enable the council to procure goods, 
services and works that will help to 
deliver the priority outcomes set out in 
the Council Plan.   

  
Is this a Key Decision Yes  
  
Portfolio Holder Councillor Mike Johnson, Deputy Leader: 

Economic Growth, Community 
Development and Placemaking portfolio  

  
Lead Officer  Brendan Carlin, Head of Programmes 

and Projects   
  

 
Report Implications 
 
Community Safety N Financial Y 

Legal Y Partnership Y 

Social Inclusion Y Asset Management Y 

Equality Duty Y Health and Safety N 

Employment (internal) N Employment  

(external to the Council) 

Y 

 
Background Papers 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The purpose of Allerdale Borough Council’s 2020-30 Strategic Commissioning 

and Procurement Strategy is to communicate clearly to employees, partners, 

suppliers and stakeholders the Council’s vision for commissioning and 

procurement of goods, works and services. Covering how commissioning 

decisions will be made and to articulate the procedural framework within 

which all procurement will take place.  

Page 36



1.2 In the strategy document, the term procurement has the widest possible 

meaning, covering all aspects of securing services, goods and works.  It is the 

overarching plan of action.   

2.0 Content  

 
2.1 It is important that the Council maintains an up to date, forward thinking and 

long term strategic approach to commissioning and procurement activity that 
supports the delivery of the Council plan priorities.   

 
2.2 The strategy will be implemented through a well-managed annual action plan 

and will deliver a sound structure and framework to support ongoing 
commissioning and procurement activity. This will enable the Council to 
maximise opportunities, minimise risks and support to achieve Council 
priorities.  

 
3.0 Customer Satisfaction and Service 
 
3.1 In all procurement activity the Council will seek to make savings and deliver 

value for money to Allerdale taxpayers by maximising best value on every 
pound spent.  This will be achieved by being more commercially aware and by 
providing clarity on our expectations to our suppliers.   

 
3.2 The portfolio holder for the Programme Office Councillor Paul Scott has been 

consulted, and is supportive of this strategy.  
 
 
4.0 Services Delivered as Locally as Possible 
 
4.1 Events throughout the year with local suppliers will provide the necessary 

training and support to prospective local suppliers to develop their knowledge 

and understanding of our practice, procedures and systems.  Where possible 

the Council will encourage small and medium sized enterprise (SME) bidders 

to work together to improve their chances of winning tenders/quotation 

exercises.   

 
5.0 Finance/Resource Implications 
 
5.1  In all procurement activity the Council will seek to make savings and deliver 

value for money to Allerdale taxpayers by maximising best value on every 
pound spent.  This will be achieved by being more commercially aware and by 
providing clarity on our expectations to our suppliers.   

 
5.2 There will be a process for continuous review to ensure our procedures are 

efficient, and achieve maximum benefit from all procurement.  Procurement 
activity will be monitored as a key activity of the Transformation and 
Commercial Board. There will also be twice yearly presentation to Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee.  

 

Page 37



6.0 Legal Implications and Risks 
 
6.1 European Regulations were transposed into UK Law on 26th February 2015. 

The EU Procurement Directives and the UK Public Procurement Regulations 
will continue to apply during the transition period of 31st January 2020 to 31st 
December 2020.  

 
6.2 Risks  
 

Risk  Consequence  Controls Required  

Procurement activity 
does not comply with 
legal framework  

The Council is subject to 
legal challenge which 
carries both financial 
and reputational risk.  

All procurement activity 
is run through the 
procurement team with 
input from legal 
 
 

Results of the 
procurement fail to 
achieve intended 
outcomes  

The Councils reputation 
is damaged by failing to 
deliver and not 
achieving value for 
money for ratepayer’s 
money.    

Bimonthly workshops on 
all aspects of the 
Commissioning Cycle 
including contract 
management to ensure 
the full value of any 
procurement is 
delivered.    

The Strategic 
Commissioning and 
Procurement Strategy is 
not delivered in full  

The Council delivers a 
procurement function 
that does not fully 
support the Council in 
delivering priorities  

Continued liaison with 
internal officers and 
external agencies to 
support the procurement 
team to deliver the 
Strategy.  

  
 
7.0 Recommendations 
 
7.1 It is recommended that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee comments on 

the draft strategy and makes any recommendations to Executive.   
  
 
7.2 It is recommended that the Executive considers any comments from the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee and adopts the draft Strategic 
Commissioning and Procurement Strategy 2020 – 30.    

 
 

Elaine Ridings  
Programme Office Manager  

Page 38



 

1 

 

Programme Office  

10 year Strategic Commissioning and 
Procurement Strategy 

April 2020 to March 2030 

“Allerdale – a great place to live, work and visit” 
 

Page 39



 

2 

Change History 
 

Version Date Change by Reason for Change 

0.0 
February 
2020  

  

0.1    

1.0    

 

 
Sign Off 
 
Approval is required from the following: 
 

Name Position Date Approved 

   

 
 
 

  

Page 40



 

3 

1. Introduction  

 

1.1 The purpose of Allerdale Borough Council’s 2020/30 Strategic 

Commissioning and Procurement Strategy is to communicate clearly to 

employees, partners, suppliers and stakeholders the Council’s vision for 

commissioning and procurement of goods, works and services. Covering how 

commissioning decisions will be made and to articulate the procedural 

framework within which all procurement will take place.  

1.2 In this strategy document, the term procurement has the widest possible 

meaning, covering all aspects of securing services, goods and works.  It is the 

overarching plan of action.   

1.3 The strategy will be implemented through a well-managed annual action plan 

and will deliver a sound structure and framework to support ongoing 

commissioning and procurement activity. This will enable the council to 

maximise opportunities, minimise risks and support to achieve council 

priorities.  

1.4 The procurement function is providing a centralised source of knowledge and 

expertise and has established good procurement practice across the council. 

Systems and processes are firmly in place to ensure that when contracts are 

let they deliver value for money and are legislatively robust to minimise costly 

challenge.  A Procurement Code setting out the steps involved in procuring 

goods and services is in place together with accompanying guides and 

templates for all council officers with responsibility for commissioning services 

to ensure compliance with regulations throughout the process from sourcing 

to monitoring end contracts.   

1.5 This strategy aims to position commissioning and procurement to have an 

‘integrative role’ to take steps to move from the traditional view of 

commissioning and procurement as primarily technical activities, concerned 

with the purchasing of goods and services to a more strategic role.   

2.  Vision  

2.1 The Strategic Commissioning and Procurement strategy must be aligned with 

the council's vision, mission, priorities and core values, whilst also taking into 

consideration the recommendations of the National Procurement Strategy 

(2018). It is intended that the Strategy is a 10 year Strategy to align to the 

Council 10 Year plan.  

2.2 This strategy will seek to embrace the national and local agendas by 

continuing to review the competitiveness of services, achieve value for money 

on a whole-life basis, and most importantly generate benefits to the economic, 

social and environmental well-being of the local community.  

2.3 Strategic commissioning, and strategic procurement, both represent a 

significant departure from the traditional view of procurement as they 

incorporate the whole cycle of how public services are planned, designed, 

developed, delivered and managed.  Regardless of seniority, councillors, 

Page 41



 

4 

heads of service, front line officers, will all have an involvement in these 

different activities and at different points in the commissioning and 

procurement cycle.  From identifying need through to monitoring contracts. 

 2.4 This means that for some areas, strategic commissioning and procurement 

will represent a fresh look at how and why different services and activities are 

delivered. 

2.5 There needs to be active management of timescales and procedures to 

comply with internal procedures. This includes budget planning, service 

planning, strategic and political decision making. This provides a means to 

align strategic commissioning activities with budgetary and performance 

activity timescales.  

  2.6 Public sector procurement is heavily regulated – the European Union 

Directives 2014 and the UK Public Sector Contract Regulations 2015, which 

require greater emphasis on training so that public sector staff involved in 

procurement are aware of best practice and the constraints within which they 

can operate.   

2.7 It is not envisaged that Brexit will present any noticeable changes for 
procurement. European Regulations were transposed into UK Law on 26th 
February 2015. The EU Procurement Directives and the UK Public 
Procurement Regulations will continue to apply during the transition period 
of 31st January 2020 to 31st December 2020.   

 
2.8 The technical requirements for carrying out procurement activities, are set 

out in a separate Procurement Code on Share Point available to all staff. 
 
2.9 The council also recognises its responsibilities as an employer and procurer / 

commissioner of services and acknowledges its duties as a district council to 

notify the Secretary of State of suspected victims of slavery or human 

trafficking as introduced by section 52 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and to 

take action and work with other responder agencies under the Civil 

Contingencies Act 2004.    The council is absolutely committed to doing all it 

can reasonably do to prevent slavery and human trafficking in its corporate 

activities and to ensuring that its supply chains are free from slavery and/or 

human trafficking. 

3. General Principles of Public Sector Regulations  

3.1 Public sector procurement, when awarding contracts has to act in a way that 

is consistent with the general principles of law; these principles being: 

 Equal Treatment  

 Non Discriminatory  

 Transparency  

 Mutual recognition  

 Proportionality  

Page 42



 

5 

3.2 Equal Treatment.  In essence treating everyone the same, giving no benefit 

to one bidder over another. To do so would risk both complacency from the 

‘favoured’ bidder and also to risk the market place ‘drying up’. Other 

potential bidders will not bid in the belief that it will go to the favoured bidder 

anyway.   

3.3 Non Discrimination. Ensuring bidders have the same opportunity, for 

example making sure that a specification is written in a way that excludes 

particular bidders. The conscious creation of a specification that potentially 

limits alternative options could not only reduce the market place but could 

also remove potential innovation.   

3.4 Transparency.  Ensuring where and how the public sector spends money 

on behalf of the general public is open to scrutiny and seen as vital to 

preserve the trust of the general public. The process of advertising 

opportunities for the organisation to bid for contracts in the European 

Journal and Contracts Finder is merely a way of ensuring that opportunities 

are put in the public domain effectively.  The need for transparency around 

how a decision was made to award a contract reflects the need for public 

sector organisations to be able to demonstrate their compliance with the 

regulations.   

3.5 Mutual Recognition.  It is important to demonstrate that standards are not 

used as a barrier.  If a UK based standard exists the authority needs to 

ensure that they are willing to accept other standards that are equivalent in 

different countries.  To build and/or sustain a market and seek to ensure that 

a market can bring innovation.   

3.6 Proportionately. This means that we would not seek to demand gold plated 

standards or requirements in either a suppliers bid or in our requirements in 

how they submit their bid.  An example of this may be to demand specific 

sector experience that may be of dubious relevance.  The use of 

disproportionate requirements may often be based upon the desire to avoid 

risk by discouraging potential bidders we are unfamiliar with. This makes 

good commercial practice to prevent an aversion to risk having a detrimental 

impact upon the potential market. 

3.7 Officers undertaking procurement on behalf of the council have a duty to 

apply best value principles in accordance with section 3 of the Local 

Government Act 1999. The best value principles are relevant to the entire 

procurement process and must always be taken into account.  

3.8 A key part of achieving best value requires us to consider and investigate 

economic, environmental and social aspects and outputs in relation to the 

purchasing decisions we make. Through our procurement processes and 

activities we aim to minimise the negative impacts associated with goods, 

services and works and their associated supply chains and maximise 

potential benefits including social value. This commitment is regulated in 

public services contracts by the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 

4.  Strategic Plan for Procurement   

Page 43



 

6 

4.1 Sustainable Council & Resilient Communities  

4.2 Deliver a Sustainable Council.  Strategic commissioning and procurement is 

concerned with the end-to-end process, not simply the transaction of buying. 

It involves understanding the council as an integral part of the supply chain, 

not just a buyer of goods and services. 

4.3 It involves an appraisal of all viable supply options in order to assess the 

best value for money for stakeholders, identifying the solution that offers the 

optimum combination of whole life costs and benefits to meet customer 

requirements and manage the performance of contractors to deliver the 

identified outcomes for the council. This means ensuring Social Value is at 

the heart of our commissioning and procurement practices.   

Objectives & Outcomes  

• Deliver the key objectives of the Council’s Plan for a sustainable 

financially secure council 

• Tackle poverty by seeking to maximise added value in social, economic 

and environmental terms from every pound spent   

• Where a local supply chain exists we will always undertake a 

procurement exercise, which targets bids from local suppliers  

• Stimulate local jobs and training/apprenticeship opportunities to support 

growth and economic development for SMEs by developing robust, 

targeted and clear specifications for all tenders  

• Consult with service users, stakeholders and incentivise providers to 

ensure social value deliverables are measured consistently, effectively 

and are understood  

• Build ethical and sustainable practices into all procurements and 

continue to evaluate on a whole-life cycle basis taking into account long 

term impacts (including environmental impacts) and maximising social 

return on investment 

• Ensure climate change implications are considered throughout the 

procurement process such as, reducing waste, buying locally and 

encouraging new technologies such as using video conferencing for 

supplier engagement to reduce vehicle emissions.  

• Adopt fair and non-discriminatory practices and encourage a diverse and 

competitive supply market, particularly targeting interest from small local 

companies. 

• Ensure that supply chains we procure from are free from modern slavery. 

• Ensure if the Council uses recruitment agencies that they have 

appropriate measures in place to identify and deal with the signs of 

forced labour.   

 

Performance Measures   

• Monitor number of tenders with social value/environmental  clauses 

added 

• % of staff paid The Living Wage in Allerdale contracts 

• % of Council Contracts awarded in Allerdale and Cumbria  

Page 44



 

7 

• Procurement Staff undergo training in identifying modern slavery in the 

supply chain and what to do about it.  

   

4.4 Make Savings and Deliver Value for Money     

4.5 In all procurement activity the Council will seek to make savings and deliver 

value for money to Allerdale taxpayers by maximising best value on every 

pound spent.  This will be achieved by being more commercially aware and 

by providing clarity on our expectations to our suppliers.  There will be a 

process for continuous review to ensure our procedures are efficient, and 

achieve maximum benefit from all procurement.   

Objectives & Outcomes  

• Adopt a category management approach to identify key areas of high 

spend and focus corporate procurement expertise and effort on those 

areas 

• Use of standard specifications and aggregated spend across the 

organisation to reduce proliferation and reduce transactions and costs  

• Base procurement decisions on whole life cycle principles and avoid 

awarding contracts where price alone is the sole consideration  

• Constantly review procurement systems, practice and procedures to 

ensure our processes are efficient and cost effective   

• Incentivise our suppliers to help us to reduce demand wherever possible   

• Encourage suppliers to adopt self-monitoring contract management 

regimes and report performance against KPIs on a regular and 

proportionate basis   

• Monitor procurement spend and provide quarterly reports to the 

Transformation and Commercial Board  to track expenditure across all 

categories  

• Monitor cashable and non-cashable savings derived from all procurement 

activity   

• Utilise e-commerce to achieve transactional efficiency for all contracts and 

provide accurate and up to date management information 

 

Performance Measures    

• Value of annual savings delivered on behalf of Council services from 

tendering and contracting  

 

4.5 Knowledgeable and Commercially aware Commissioners   

The council will enable those with commissioning and procurement 

responsibilities to develop their commercial skills and undertake their roles 

effectively and efficiently.  The council will seek to strengthen engagement 

with the local supply chain, and encourage local suppliers to compete for work 

through gaining a better understanding of the barriers and obstacles which 

prevent interest from small and medium enterprises (SMEs) and local 

businesses.   

Page 45



 

8 

Visibility is a key issue for SMEs. They cannot see the opportunities and the 

buyer cannot see them. They may believe the process for biddings is too 

complex and with limited resources would prefer to spend their efforts on other 

opportunities.  

The council will use procurement research and intelligence to understand the 

market place and develop service specifications which are attractive to the 

supply chain.  Where possible the council will encourage SME bidders to work 

together to improve their chances of winning tenders/quotation exercises.   

  

Objectives & Outcomes  

• Seek to build capacity and drive best practice across the council through 

the provision of user friendly codes of practice, increased training and 

development and the provision of accessible professional advice and 

guidance   

• Work with elected members to raise the profile of commissioning and 

procurement activity across the Council  

• Modernise, improve and simplify the procurement process as technology 

evolves and build upon our existing electronic systems   

• Provide the necessary training and support to prospective suppliers to 

develop their knowledge and understanding of our practice, procedures 

and systems  

• Strive to engage with local sole suppliers and explore opportunities for 

them to bid for council contracts   

 

Performance Measures   

• Training in public contract regulations for all procurement staff and for staff 

with responsibility for commissioning and procurement (this will be in-

house, peer support as well as external training to meet specific specialist 

need).   

• Peer training and support at team meetings and one to one basis for 

commissioners of services  

• Projects will be progressed through business cases and review stages and 

input from procurement is essential to guide these processes.  

• Option appraisals should be provided for consideration/approval to the 

Transformation and Commissioning Board and supporting evidence on 

risks, benefits and whole life costs. Market intelligence is also required to 

understand capacity/capability to deliver.  

• Produce a ‘Doing Business with the Council Guide’ for local businesses to 

better understand our procurement processes  

• Run at least twice yearly meet the buyer events to build relationship with 

local suppliers   

 

4.6 Delivering Outstanding Local Services    

Page 46



 

9 

The council aim is to be judged as excellent in terms of its approach to 

commissioning and procurement and will strive to ensure that contract 

outcomes are aligned to the Council’s vision and key priorities.  The council 

will build upon its strong regional relationships with Effective Procurement in 

Cumbria (EPiC) and Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation (YPO)1 to work 

collaboratively where this offers best value, to consolidate purchasing power 

by aggregation, making best use of networking opportunities and sharing best 

practice.   

Objectives & Outcomes  

• Consolidate and co-ordinate procurement activity to obtain economies of 

scale establishing corporate contracts for common goods and services 

where possible and appropriate  

• Where a local market does not exist the council will work in collaboration 

with local and regional partners to maximise purchasing power ( such as 

in the water reverse e-auction)  

• Seek to understand fully the terms and conditions which apply to 

framework agreements prior to calling-off them  

• Share best practice and learn from our partners to adopt proven methods 

and outcomes to ensure high quality, cost effective service delivery is 

achieved  

• Strive to become an intelligent client by using end buyers effectively and 

thinking innovatively engaging with all stakeholders to drive continuous 

improvement throughout the supply chain    

 

Performance Measures   

• Value of dividend and rebates achieved through collaborative 

procurement   

• Number of collaborative procurement exercises.  

 

4.7      Clear Governance, Compliance & Accountability of Procurement Decisions 

We will maintain a fair, consistent, ethical and proportionate governance 

framework for procurement ensuring that resources are adequate and are 

deployed effectively.  The activities of the Commissioning and Procurement 

team will be monitored at corporate leadership team level by the Chief 

Executive and at council member level by the portfolio holder.   The council 

will strive to ensure that policies, procedures and guidance enable transparent 

and accountable decision making.  There will be clear audit trails for all 

procurement activity.  Contract management skills need to be further 

developed in local government.  The council is seeking to strengthen contract 

                                            
1   The Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation (YPO) is the primary northern regional purchasing and buying Organisation.  The Council is an 

Associate Member of YPO which provides access to compliant competitively priced frameworks and catalogues bringing opportunities 

to make best use of existing expertise and resources as an alternative to undertaking our own procurement process.  As an associated 

member we can obtain a dividend on what we spend.  

Page 47



 

10 

management to ensure that all suppliers deliver high quality, cost effective 

services that bring added value to the local community wherever possible.    

Objectives & Outcomes  

 Continuously review the commissioning and procurement framework and 

strive to ensure that the council is achieving procurement excellence built 

on strong ethical foundations.  

 Review and if necessary update our standard tender documents to ensure 

that they are compliant with legislation and they are easy to use and fully 

understood by our prospective suppliers.  

 The Programme Office will work with elected members to develop a 

greater understanding of commissioning, projects and procurement and 

seek to use their local contacts and knowledge to strengthen relationships 

with the local supply chain. 

 The council will strive to improve relationships with its supply chain to allow 

for early notification of tender/quotation exercises. 

 The council will continue to provide free access to the supply chain to our 

e-tendering portal ‘The Chest’.     

 The Programme Office will provide training and development for all council 

officers responsible for procurement, projects and contract management 

and seek to strengthen our ability to manage contracts effectively through 

an improved monitoring regime and a more commercial approach 

 

Performance Measures  

 Number of local suppliers actively registered on The Chest  

 % of third party  expenditure which is directed towards local suppliers and 

companies  

 Number of formal legal challenges received and upheld against the total 

number of  tenders  

 Number of contracts terminated or failed prior to expected end date  

 Twice yearly report to Overview and Scrutiny Committee   

 

5. Framework  

5.1 At the heart of the Strategic Commissioning and Procurement Strategy is a 

framework for how Procurement will be delivered.  It is based on the Institute 

for Public Care Commissioning Cycle.  Although this model is primarily 

relevant for public care services such as health, education social care and 

housing it can be applied as the framework on which all services 

commissioning in the public sector should take place.   

5.2 Ensuring officers and members identify the 4 key performance management 

elements of analyse, plan, do, and review will mean that all commissioning 

and procurement follows a robust process, which will enable the strategy to 

be implemented. The paragraphs below outline some of the key activities that 

might be undertaken under each element of the IPC commissioning cycle for 

all procurement and commissioning undertaken by the Council.   

Page 48



 

11 

Figure 1 The Institute for Public Care Commissioning Cycle  

 

. 

Analyse - understanding the values and purpose of the agencies involved, 

the needs they must address, and the environment in which they operate. 

This element of the commissioning cycle involves activities such as: 

 Mapping and identifying the stakeholders that need to be engaged in 

the commissioning process. 

 Analysing the needs of the service area and /community, drawing on  

research data to make hard and soft judgements about current 

requirements in Allerdale  

 Identifying the key outcomes to deliver, based upon the information 

available and the gaps identified where current provision does not 

meet the identified needs, wants and expectations of customers 

Plan - Delivering services that meet the Councils needs and deploying 

resources in the most efficient and economical way possible are two 

principles that are integral to everything that we do. Neither of these is 

possible without good planning.  The aims of these activities are to help 

understand: 

 What is currently provided and how this meets local needs alongside 
what resources are available and the capabilities provided by alternative 
providers in the market. 

 How we could offer something better through commissioning higher 
quality or better value for money services in the future – bringing 
together stakeholders to develop new ideas for services. 

Page 49



 

12 

 How to turn good ideas into reality through developing comprehensive, 
robust business cases and commissioning plans that enable senior 
stakeholders to make informed decisions about which services to 
commission.  

 The fundamental aim of this stage is always the same – to deliver 
efficient, effective services that meet priority outcomes and offer value for 
money for local people.  

Do - The specific form this stage takes depends on the scale and type of 
service being commissioned – for instance, EU guidelines are stipulated for 
tendering contracts for services that exceed a certain cost; similarly, 
acquiring services in-house or from the voluntary and community sector may 
encompass different procedures, such as adhering to the Grants process we 
have developed.  There are a set of common principles that apply 
regardless of the situation we commission: 

 Service acquisition involves following a particular ‘route to market’ to 
obtain or procure a service, including:  adhering to legislative 
requirements; establishing potential providers; understanding how to 
obtain their services;  and agreeing terms and conditions to secure 
those services.  

 Establishing a performance management framework with all service 
providers, being clear what success looks like.  

 Establishing active delivery management on behalf of the Council to 
ensure that any problems can be highlighted early, and that 
measures can be taken to address them.  

Review - monitoring the impact of services and analysing the extent to 
which they have achieved the purpose intended. Reviewing is closely linked 
to the Plan stage as it considers the gap between current service delivery 
and local needs.  This element of the commissioning cycle involves activities 
such as: 

 pulling together information from individual contracts or service level 
agreements developing systems to bring together relevant data on 
finance, activity and outcomes  

 analysing any changes in legislative requirements, population need 
and reviewing the overall impact of services to identify revisions 
needed to deliver strategic priorities and targets. 

 

6. Annual Action Plan   

The table below highlights actions for the coming year. The action plan will be 

reviewed and updated annually.  

Ref  Action  Benefit  Timeframe  Owner  

Deliver a Sustainable Council 

1.0  Work with 
other District 
Council and 
Cumbria 

Ensures 
consistency 
across 
Cumbria  

March 2021  Procurement Officer 
and Effective 
Procurement in 

Page 50



 

13 

Ref  Action  Benefit  Timeframe  Owner  

County 
Council to 
have some 
shared social 
value 
measures, 
responses to 
Moderns 
Slavery/Climat
e Emergency.     

Cumbria (Epic) 
Group    

1.1  Continue to 
develop skills 
and 
knowledge 
across the 
Council  to 
allow for 
innovative 
thinking and 
practice to 
build social 
value 
outcomes into 
tendering 
processes 
through 
workshops for 
third tier 
managers  

Promote 
employment 
and 
economic 
sustainability  
 
Raise the 
living 
standards of 
local 
residents  
 
Promote 
environment
al 
sustainability 

October 
2020    

Programme Office 
Manager/Procureme
nt 
Officer/Procurement 
Assistant    

Make Savings and Deliver Value for Money 

2.0 Report 
expenditure to 
the 
Transformatio
n and 
Commercial 
Board  to 
determine 
priority 
procurement 
projects and 
facilitate 
review and 
renegotiation 
 

Assisting the 
council in 
achieving 
the cost and 
efficiency 
benefits 
which derive 
from 
economies 
of scale and 
effective 
procurement 

March 2021  Programme Office 
Manager/Procureme
nt Officer  
Transformation and 
Commercial  Board  

2.1 Pursue any 
appropriate 
opportunities 
to reduce 
costs or 

Working with 
others to 
achieve 
improved 
value for 

As 
Appropriate  

All buyers of Council 
goods, services and 
works 

Page 51



 

14 

Ref  Action  Benefit  Timeframe  Owner  

improve 
services that 
can arise from 
innovative 
procurement, 
commissionin
g or 
collaboration 

money, 
derived 
through 
economies 
of scale and 
effective 
utilisation of 
shared 
resources.  

Knowledgeable and Commercially aware Commissioners/buyers   

3.0 Update ABC 
Information on 
the Internet 
for suppliers 
to navigate 
our systems.  
Doing 
Business with 
the Council 
Guide   

Stimulate 
the local 
economy 
and 
encourage 
the SMEs 

Aug 2020   Programme Office 
Manager/Procureme
nt Officer  
Transformation and 
Commercial  Board 

3.1 Continuously 
review and 
update 
guidance 
documents, 
procedures 
and codes of 
practice and 
make 
available to all 
relevant 
employees 

Ensuring a 
consistent 
and uniform 
approach to 
all 
procurement 
matters, 
ensuring 
openness 
and clarity 
with an 
appropriate 
audit trail 
that is 
resistant to 
challenge. 

Ongoing 
BiMonthly 
Procureme
nt Pop Up 
Workshops    

Programme Office 
Manager/Procureme
nt Officer  
Transformation and 
Commercial  Board 

3.2 Encourage 
robust 
contract 
management 
through 
training and 
development, 
and use of a 
best practice 
guide by 
service 
managers 

Ensuring a 
consistent 
and uniform 
approach to 
contract 
managemen
t, ensuring 
better 
compliance 
and right 
quality in 
services  

Ongoing  Programme Office 
Manager/Procureme
nt Officer  
Transformation and 
Commercial  Board 

4.0 
Delivering 

Consolidate 
our approach 

Ensure 
achieve best 

August 
2020  

Heads of Service 
Governance Group   

Page 52



 

15 

Ref  Action  Benefit  Timeframe  Owner  

Outstandin
g Local 
Services  

to market 
through early 
agreement of 
an annual 
procurement 
work 
programme 
signed off by 
every Head of 
Service. 
 
This will be 
included as 
part of the 
Annual 
Governance 
Statement  

practice and 
budgets are 
in place and 
appropriate 
sign off of 
decisions.   

4.1 Continue to 
develop 
relationships 
with EPiC and 
YPO to 
maximise our 
purchasing 
power where 
a local supply 
chain does 
not exist. 

Economies 
of scale by 
aggregating 
demand.   

Ongoing   Programme Officer 
Manager/ 
Procurement Officer 
/Transformation and 
Commercial Board 

Clear Governance, Compliance & Accountability of Procurement Decisions 
 

5.0 Comply with 
European and 
UK 
procurement 
regulations 
and ensure a 
level playing 
field exists for 
all prospective 
bidders. 

Reduce the 
risk of legal 
challenge. 
Equal 
treatment of 
all 
prospective 
suppliers 

Ongoing  Programme Officer 
Manager/ 
Procurement Officer 
/Transformation and 
Commercial Board  

5.1 Comply with 
Internal 
control 
through 
challenge and 
oversight from 
Transformatio
n and 
Commissionin
g Board and 

Reduce the 
risk of legal 
challenge. 
Ensures 
oversight of 
procurement  

Ongoing  Programme Officer 
Manager/ 
Procurement Officer 
/Transformation and 
Commercial Board  

Page 53



 

16 

Ref  Action  Benefit  Timeframe  Owner  

twice yearly 
presentations 
to Elected 
members as 
part of 
Scrutiny  

 

Page 54



 

 

Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Executive – 19 February 2020 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 21 February 2020 
 

Council Plan   
Quarter 3 Performance Report 2019/20 

 

  
The Reason for the Decision The Council’s performance at the end of  

Quarter 3 2019/20 as measured by key 
projects/activities and KPIs  

  
Summary of options considered  N/A 
  
Recommendations That Members note the information contained 

within the report and take action to improve 
performance where necessary.  

  
Financial /  Resource Implications None arising directly from the report 
  
Legal / Governance Implications None arising directly from the report 
  
Community Safety Implications None arising directly from the report 
  
Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications 

None arising directly from the report 
 

  
Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed 

Equality impacts are considered in the 
development of individual projects and 
programmes 

  
Wards Affected All 
  
The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities 

This is a performance report on delivery against 
the Council’s priorities as set out in the Council 
Plan 

  
Is this a Key Decision No 
  
Portfolio Holder Councillor Marion Fitzgerald, Policy, Governance 

and People Resources  
  
Lead Officer  Alex FitzGerald, Policy Manager (Corporate, 

Performance and Information) 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale.gov.uk 
01900 702719 

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 8

mailto:alex.fitzgerald@allerdale.gov.uk


 

 

 
Report Implications (Please delete where applicable). 
 
Community Safety Y Employment (external to the Council) Y 

Financial  N Employment (internal) Y 

Legal N Partnership Y 

Social Inclusion Y Asset Management Y 

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N 

 
Background papers ………………………… ………………………………………………… 
 
 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The Quarter 3 Corporate Performance Report for 2019/20 covers the period from 1 

October to 31 December 2019.   
 

1.2 The report is based on key projects/activities and key performance indicators set 
out in the Corporate Business Plan.   

 
1.3 The Corporate Business Plan is built around our Council Plan.  For each Council 

Plan priority theme the Business Plan details key service improvement 
projects/actions as well as activity to deliver key strategies and plans over the next 
year, and the key performance indicators that we will use to track our performance.  
In addition the Business Plan sets out how our significant day to day service 
activity contributes to achieving our objectives.   

 
1.4 In line with the Council’s Performance Management Framework the Executive and 

Overview and Scrutiny receive quarterly performance reports based on the Council 
Plan. 

 
 

2.0 Council Performance 
 

2.1 The full quarterly performance report is attached as Appendix 1 and contains: 
 

 A short overview of our Quarter 3 performance  

 Appendices containing more detail on performance against our priorities, key 
performance indicators and corporate risks 

 
2.2 In line with the Council’s Integrated Assurance and Risk Strategy, Heads of Service 

review the risk and issues log on a monthly basis or as required, and report to SMT on 
existing key risks (those which score 9 and above), risks that have changed 

Page 56



 

 

significantly and any new and emerging risks/issues, with key risks being reported to 
the Executive on a quarterly basis. The current Key Risks Report can be found in 
Appendix C to the Quarterly Performance Report. 

 
3.0 Customer Satisfaction and Service 
 
3.1  Projects within the priority area of ‘Creating a sustainable business’ in the Council 

Plan relate specifically to customer satisfaction and service.   
 
4.0 Services Delivered as Locally as Possible 
 
4.1 This is an area covered within the Council Plan under the ‘Creating a sustainable 

business’ priority. 
 
5.0 Finance/Resource Implications 
 
5.1 There are no additional resource requirements arising from this report. 
 
6.0 Legal Implications and Risks 
 
6.1 There are no additional legal implications arising from this report.  Any risks will be 

managed through the Risk Management Strategy and corporate methodology. 
 
7.0 Recommendations 
 
7.1  That Members note the information contained within the report and take action to 

improve performance where necessary. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Alex FitzGerald 
Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and Information) 

 
 
 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



 

1 

 

 
 
 

 

Quarterly corporate performance report 
 

2019/20 Quarter 3 performance 
 
This performance report summarises our performance during the third quarter of 2019/20 
covering the period from 1 October to 31 December 2019. The report contains: 
 

 A short overview of our Quarter 3 performance  

 Appendices containing detail on performance against our priorities, key performance 
indicators (KPIs) and corporate risks 

 
 

Performance overview 
 
This report contains Quarter 3 progress updates on 58 projects/activities and 46 key 
performance indicators set out in the Business Plan. The report also updates members on key 
corporate risk and activity to mitigate those. 
 
Summary of Quarter 1 position Total Red Amber Green Blue Not 

targeted 

Projects/activities 58 3 6 47 2 - 

KPIs  44* 8 9 25 - 2 

* We are awaiting data to be able to calculate Q3 figures for 2 KPIs.   
 

The attached appendices contain more details about performance on our activities/projects and 
key performance indicators. 

 

 

  

Page 59



 

2 

 

Projects/activities (Appendix A) 

 81% of projects/activities are completed or on track 
 
What went well in quarter 3? 

 Local Plan (Part 2) has moved forward - consultation on proposed modifications to the 
Local Plan closed on 1 November. All comments were forwarded to the Planning 
Inspector. The Planning Inspector issued his report on the Local Plan Examination in 
January. The Local Plan (part 2) was found sound and a copy of the Inspector’s report 
can be found on the Council’s website. The Inspector’s report will be considered by 
Executive in March. 

 The percentage of spend with local Cumbrian suppliers has remained above target 
with 43.1% of total expenditure on goods and services being from local suppliers in 
quarter 3. The Procurement team are continuing to work with the Tackling Poverty 
Board to ensure council spend on goods and services can support growth in local 
communities. 

 The Maryport Regeneration Plan is moving forward positively.  Following two 
successful expressions of interest for Future High Streets funding and Heritage Action 
Zone funding, additional information for the Heritage Action Zone bid has now been 
submitted.  We should be advised of the progress of that bid in March. Consultants 
have commenced planning / design work, and an engagement programme is 
commencing with the business group. First draft business case is to be submitted by 
15 March. 

 A programme of activity (agreed with partners including Washington Square, private 
sector operators and the voluntary sector) was delivered in Workington in the run up to 
Christmas 2019. The aim was to support the retail and nightime economy. Activity 
included a pop up Christmas market in a vacant store, late night shopping and 
entertainment. Evaluation is being carried out and will be reported in the next quarter. 

 Two draft Community Housing Fund Grant agreements were sent out in Q3. Once 
agreed and signed this will fully commit the Community Housing Fund budget. The 
Housing Manager will continue to support existing groups and any new community 
groups interested in community led housing will be signposted to the Cumbria and 
Lancaster Community Led Housing HUB. 

 Work on the Tackling Poverty Action Plan continues including: further grants agreed to 
support schemes addressing immediate need; a West Cumbria skills event hosted; 
and training sourced to support the Make Every Contact Count initiative.  

 The Allerdale Local Focus Hub has contributed to some great results.  We have seen 
reductions in relation to anti-social behaviour and crime for Allerdale. Overall we have 
seen a positive reduction month on month with ASB decreasing from 126 in August, to 
104 in September (-17%) and crime decreasing from 668 to 614 (-8%).  We now use 
combined data from the Police and MyAllerdale to identify the community safety 
priorities across Allerdale, we intend to grow this data to include multiple partners.  

 Improvements to leisure facilities and open spaces - contractors are on site at Jubilee 
Park for the play feature installation. The brief for the improvements to the area in front 
of Workington Leisure centre is ready to go out to tender. Equipment for Siddick Pond 
improvements through the Water Environment Grant is being sourced. Highfield 
Squash club improvement plan is ongoing, coming into the final stages of internal 
works with a bid being developed for extra works through the Rugby Football League. 

 Physical activity referral scheme – the scheme is continuing to run on a reduced scale. 
Case studies show the programme is really working for those who are at risk of long 

Page 60



 

3 

 

term health issues. Local funding is being sought to sustain project until a decision on 
a large scale, North Cumbria scheme is agreed.  

 Environmental enforcement – record numbers of Fixed Penalty Notices continue to be 
issued with Duty of Care and dog fouling being the team's focus.  The schools 
campaigns continue to progress well with over 500 cotton bags issued.  Sweeper 
signage has been completed and will be added to the vehicles in January.   

 

Where are there issues? 

There were six projects/activities reported as amber at the end of Q3 and three reported as 
red.  Performance issues are: 

 There has been a delay to the ICTIS project start up caused by a challenge to the 
procurement process.  However, MHCLG have reviewed the procurement process 
and confirmed it was compliant so the project can now resume.  Although the project 
is now a year behind originally planned it is still within the timescale for completion of 
EU-funded projects in 2023.   

 Promoting healthy active lifestyles – we are still working with Active Cumbria to deliver 
a walking programme, with new walk leader training dates set for Q4. British Cycling 
no longer have a local officer, but the lead rides scheme is still being delivered through 
local volunteers. The plan is to seek permissions for contacts to set up a local forum 
for the volunteers delivering in Allerdale.  

 Two Empty Homes Grants have been completed in Q3. All other approved grants are 
being monitored by the team and letters will be sent to all outstanding Empty Homes 
Grant cases in January to advise that works must be completed by the end of March 
2020. There are two cases that are awaiting information to be approved and these will 
have 12 months to complete works once approved. 

 Reedlands Road project - additional survey, ground investigation and inflation costs 
have increased costs compared to the original budget as detailed in the exception 
report and corresponding growth bid. A growth bid was approved in December 2019 
and the project remains on track with current spend forecasts. A corresponding 
change request has been submitted to MHCLG. 

 Prevent scheme implementation - information is cascaded from the Prevent Board for 
Cumbria, however, further work is required to resurrect the internal Prevent meetings 
and establish further internal protocols. 

 Activity relating to HMO licence enforcement is flagged as red.  We are making sure 
that all current HMO licences are up date, however due to resources we have not 
been able to progress with a proactive programme to identify potential HMO's which 
would fall under the new definition. We have a plan in place and are exploring options 
to assist implementation of the plan.   

 Implementing new contract arrangements for waste and recycling is flagged as red.  A 
Mobilisation Plan is in place and being implemented towards service transfer to 
Allerdale Waste Services (LATCo) on 4 April 2020. This moblisation risk register and 
project plan include a number of actions/ risk that are red. Work to mitigate actions 
and risks is being progressed through the project team/ project board. 

 Implementation of the new web-based land and property system (Arcus) has 
experienced significant issues and is flagged as red.  A meeting was held recently with 
Arcus senior management. Arcus are reviewing their resources and are developing a 
new project plan to meet our objectives. 

 

Page 61



 

4 

 

Key performance indicators (Appendix B) 

 57% of reported KPIs are on target  
 
What went well in quarter 3? 

 On target performance in determining minor and major planning applications within the 
statutory period.  

 Spend with local Cumbrian suppliers above target – 43.1% against a target of 42%. 

 Above target leisure centre usage at Keswick, Cockermouth and the Wave and by 
juniors and the over 60s. 

 Homelessness – all homeless decisions made within the statutory timeframe.  

 Benefits processing – we continue to exceed targets on processing times for claims. 

 100% of local land change searches carried out within target timeframe. 

 Council Tax and NNDR collection rates are on target.  

 On target resolution of ICT support calls. 

 Above target occupancy rates of the Council’s property portfolio. 

 
Where are there issues? 

Nine KPIs are reported as amber (off target) and eight as red (significantly off target).  
Performance issues are:  

 Proportion of invoices from local Cumbrian businesses paid within 14 days (amber) – 
96.2% against a target of 98.0%. However, Q3 2019/20 compares favourably with the 
same quarter in 2018/19 when only 94.9% was achieved.  The figure for payments to 
local suppliers within 14 calendar days (10 working days) is improving steadily year on 
year. 

 Proportion of Council spend on goods and services with local (Allerdale) suppliers 
(red) – 31.7% against a target of 42.0%.  The figure in this quarter is slightly down on 
Q2 due to natural volatility and variation across each quarter. Total spend was higher 
in the last quarter overall and included a high spend on specialist equipment as part of 
the Disabled Facilities Grant that the council administers. Some procurements will 
always require specialist goods or services from out of the area, where these cannot 
be provided in Cumbria. The Procurement team are continuing to work with the 
Tackling Poverty Board to ensure council spend on goods and services can support 
growth in local communities. 

 Leisure centre usage at Workington was lower than target (red) – membership levels 
have levelled off and a couple of evening closures due to replacing steel works have 
affected the figures. A new gym due to open in Workington in the coming months will 
see increased competition, membership offers and deals are being prepared 
to mitigate any potential loss. A brochure of Allerdale facilities and activities has been 
produced and will be distributed directly to homes in February. Introduction of 'free 
gym/fitness' is being considered at quiet times.  

 Leisure centre usage by concessionary groups at Workington and the Wave is slightly 
below target (amber). Some confusion over the concessionary membership at the 
Wave has been resolved and will be promoted through appropriate streams. GLL are 
aware that more could be done to promote the Wave fitness offer and this is being 
looked at.   

Page 62



 

5 

 

 One programmed private water supply was not sampled in Q3 due to it having a 

Regulation 18 Notice served on it whilst improvements are made. The water will be 

sampled in Q4. (amber) 

 Food safety inspections (red) – 86% carried out against a target of 100% representing 
one Category B inspection not being carried out. The outstanding inspection will be 
completed early in Q4, and the service has reviewed the process to ensure delivery of 
the target. 

 79% of DFGs approved within the target timeframe against a target of 85% (amber).  
42 grants were approved in Q3. 9 were outside of the 12 week target. Delays in 
approvals were as a result of contractors not providing quotes in timely manner and 
delays in registered providers confirming paying tenants’ contribution where 
appropriate. The Housing Grants Officer post remains vacant. 

 2 Empty Homes Grants have been completed in Q3 against a target of 3 (amber). All 
other approved grants are being monitored by the team and letters will be sent to all 
outstanding Empty Homes Grant cases in January to advise that works must be 
completed by the end of March 2020. There are two cases that are awaiting 
information to be approved and these will have 12 months to complete works once 
approved. 

 Number of housing units granted planning permission (red) – 68 against a target of 
107.  Major housing applications still being held in abeyance due to issues being 
encountered especially following late matters being raised by statutory consultees.   

 Full Plans determined within 5 weeks (Building Control) (amber) – 83% against a 
target of 85%. 

 Abandoned call rate (red) – 9% against a target of 7%.  Increased demand from 
General Election enquiries has slowed any performance improvement over the last 
quarter, however we are still moving towards reaching target with significant 
improvement since Q1. 

 % of invoices paid within 30 days (amber) – 97.2% against a target of 98.0%. Q3 
2019/20 slightly lower than the same quarter 2018/19 when 98.6% was achieved.  The 
target of 98% was missed in October and November, but rallied again in December to 
99.1%. 

 Sickness absence levels (red) - continuation of some long term absences cases are 
causing the increase in figures to remain/continue. Increase in the number of incidents 
of short term absence, with a common cause of absence being stomach bugs/flu. The 
time of year also impacts this.  

 % of workforce with zero absence (amber) – 86% against a target of 90%, related to 
the sickness absence KPI above. 

 

Details of actions/interventions being taken to address underperformance where KPIs are red 
are given under each priority heading and in Appendix B.  

 
Key Corporate Risks (Appendix C) 
 
All strategic risks identified are contained within the Corporate Risk and Issues Log. Key risks 
(those which score 9 and above) are included in this report.  There are currently 17 key risks 
which have been reviewed by the Senior Management Team. The current Key Risks Report 
setting out mitigating actions can be found in Appendix C to this report. 
 
The information in this report relates to activity to the end of December 2019.

Page 63



 

6 

 

Definitions 
 

 Projects/activities Key Performance Indicators 

Blue Complete  

Green 
Everything is on target / satisfactory 
progress is being made / no action 
required 

On, or better than, target 

Amber 

There are some concerns over achieving 
deadlines or outputs  / there are issues to 
rectify, but plans are in place to get the 
project back on track 

Worse than target (up to 10% variance) 
- some action may be required to 
improve performance 

Red 

There are significant concerns over 
achieving outputs / there is serious 
slippage in the timetable / there are major 
issues to rectify 

Significantly worse than target (>10% 
variance) – action required to improve 
performance 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices 
 

A. Key projects/activities 

B. Key performance measures 

C. Key corporate risks 

Page 64



Appendix A - Q3 2019/20 report - activities/projects

Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/ 
measure

Head of Service
Q2 RAG 
status

2019/20
Q3 update

Q3 RAG 
status

1.1 Implement the ‘strengthening general conditions’ growth actions within the 
Business Growth Strategy including supporting local entrepreneurial initiatives and 
managing the ERDF bid for the Information and Communication Technology 
Improvement Support Project 

31/03/2020 Nik Hardy

Amber

MHCLG has undertaken a review of the procurement process and has confirmed it is compliant. The project 
can now resume.  An initial meeting with the selected provider took place on 20 December 2019, and a PIV 
with MHCLG is scheduled for 8 January 2020 to discuss the project and revised outputs and spend profiles. A 
project change note will be prepared to enable the project to commence. The project is now a year behind 
originally planned, but still within the timescale for completion of EU-funded projects in 2023.  A revised 
Project Change Request based on accurate information is now being prepared.

Amber

1.2 Implement the Strengthening Manufacturing offer actions within the Business 
Growth Strategy such as growing the manufacturing forum and large employer 
engagement

31/03/2020 Nik Hardy

Green

The large employers forum met on 11 October for the new Leader and Deputy Leader to introduce the draft 
Council Strategy. Green

1.4 Work with the Homes and Communities Agency to facilitate the development of 
new sites for housing, this may include partnering arrangements with developers. 
Specific targets will be set for individual sites once identified. 

31/03/2020 Nik Hardy/Kevin 
Kerrigan

Green

There have been no direct discussions in Q3 with Homes England, although during discussions with Strategic 
partners, developers advised that they are self funding and do not require intervention from HE.  There is one 
local developer however, who is working with HE to deliver open market and affordable housing in Allerdale.  
We are progressing the use of council assets linked to the setting up of a Housing Company.

Green

1.5 Undertake formal consultations and submission to Secretary of State for 
examination prior to adoption of Local Plan Part 2 in July 2018 to identify sites for 
development and support growth in the borough 

31/01/2020 Nik Hardy

Green

Consultation on proposed modifications to the Local Plan closed on 1 November. All comments were 
forwarded to the Planning Inspector. The Planning Inspector issued his report on the Local Plan Examination 
in January. The Local Plan (part 2) was found sound and a copy of the Inspector’s report can be found on the 
Council’s website. The Inspector’s report will be considered by Executive in March.

Green

1.6 Deliver actions to develop new market and affordable housing as set out in the 
Housing Strategy including:
• Maximising housing opportunities to drive economic growth
• Developing partnerships to deliver new housing
• Using Council assets to deliver housing 
• Undertaking research and policy development activity on self-build and custom 
build to identify available land and opportunities

2017/21 Nik Hardy

Green

Self Build Custom Build Policy and grants programme agreed by Executive in September.  Promotion of grants 
supported by the Comms Team. Grant applications and information packs are now available for individuals or 
groups to apply for. We have received 2 Grant applications and have funding 1 at present.  

Green

1.7 Plan for how we use additional retained growth through Business Rates Pool and 
undertake risk analysis and scenario planning for loss of that growth   

31/03/2020 Catherine 
Nicholson/ Nik 
Hardy

Green

The Authority continues to monitor, on a quarterly basis, projections of pool income along with local and 
national risks associated with business rates income and local pooling arrangements.

Green

1.9 Increase percentage of Council spend with local businesses providing goods and 
services through activity to proactively engage with local businesses as part of 
procurement and commissioning 

Increase local 
spend from 
40% to 42% by 
March 2019

Brendan Carlin

Green

The Council exceeded its target with 43.1% of total expenditure on goods and services being from local 
suppliers. The Procurement team are continuing to work with the tackling poverty board to ensure council 
spend on goods and services can support growth in local communities. Green

Economic opportunity and growth

P
age 65



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/ 
measure

Head of Service
Q2 RAG 
status

2019/20
Q3 update

Q3 RAG 
status

2.1 Deliver the increasing wider employment actions within the Business Growth 
Strategy to gain a better understanding of the issues facing an under-represented 
group in Allerdale’s workforce 

2017/20 Nik Hardy

Green

West Cumbria Skills workshop was held in the Council Chamber on 20 November with a wide range of 
stakeholders to consider proposals for into work support for the long term unemployed. Further work is to be 
undertaken and a potential model developed.

Green

2.2 Work with partners to ensure that there is a network of support for young people to 
enhance their employability (Business Growth Strategy – Strengthening 
Manufacturing priority actions) 

2018/19 Nik Hardy

Green

This continues to be achieved through the BEC Business Cluster Social Value Group - Business School 
Collaboration Project raising aspirations and awareness of the many opportunities with employers in West 
Cumbria. This project has been entered into and won awards. Green

3.1

3.1a Delivering activity to implement the Maryport Delivery Plan 31/03/2020 Graeme Wilson

Green

The Heritage Action Zone bid additional information submitted, next milestone - March should know progress 
of funding.  Consultants have commenced planning / design work, engagement programme commencing with 
business group. First draft business case to be submitted 15 March.

Green

3.1c Undertake feasibility work to develop proposals to support the development of 
Keswick Showcase Area (working with LDNPA)

31/03/2020 Kevin Kerrigan

Green

Keswick Master Plan will include: Car Parks; Leisure Centre; Former Station and is programmed to begin after 
revised Economic Growth Strategy is agreed. This may possibly be impacted by Stronger Towns funding.  This 
is a project that is part of the project dossier for the Regeneration and Investment Programme expected start 
date is March 2020.  

Green

3.2

3.2b Work with UCLAN to develop initiatives to support tourism in West Cumbria 30/09/2018 Kevin Kerrigan

Blue

COMPLETE Q1

Blue

3.2e Work with partners to develop a night time economy plan for Workington 31/03/2020 Kevin Kerrigan

Green

A programme of activity agreed with partners including Washington Square, private sector operators and the 
voluntary sector was delivered in Workington in the run up to Christmas 2019. The aim was to support the 
retail and nightime economy. Activity included a pop up Christmas market in a vacant store, late night 
shopping and entertainments. Evaluation is being carried out and will be reported in the next quarter.

Green

3.2f Maximise the opportunities for Allerdale business and organisations from the 
commencement of services from Carlisle Lake District Airport by developing 
packages for customers.

31/03/2020 Kevin Kerrigan

Green

The airport operator reports that our Virtual Reality service in the airport is well used and received by 
travellers. No indication has been given when the airport will introduce packages. Green

3.2g Work with partners to target the Chinese market to attract more Chinese visitors 
especially independent travellers to Allerdale

31/03/2020 Kevin Kerrigan

Green

Activity the North Lakes China Forum (of which we are a member) undertook in this quarter included 
attending a major travel trade event, Visit Britain Destination China and NE Asia Exhibition in Xi'an China, 25 - 
28 November 2019. The Forum's travel trade brochure was also revised and updated. Green

Stronger and healthier communities

Implement the ‘Improve the vitality of Allerdale’s local centres’ actions within the Business Growth Strategy including: 

Implement the new approach to the tourism offer actions within the Business Growth Plan including branding activity, 
website development, and promotional materials including:

P
age 66



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/ 
measure

Head of Service
Q2 RAG 
status

2019/20
Q3 update

Q3 RAG 
status

2.3 Deliver the Tackling Poverty Strategy action plan including:
• ensuring people in need can access food and supporting food initiatives and 
schemes
• addressing fuel poverty
• supporting advice and advocacy services  
• working with partners to address barriers to employment 

31/12/2020 Nik Hardy/ Paul 
Wood

Green

Grants agreed to support schemes addressing immediate need. Hosted West Cumbria Skills Event. Make Every 
Contact Count training sourced. 

Green

2.5
2.5a Undertaking early preventative work and work towards the requirements of the 

new Homelessness Reduction Act
31/03/2021 Paul Wood

Green
Work ongoing and well established in all areas. Early preventative work is a priority alongside rough sleeping.

Green

2.5b Reviewing temporary homeless accommodation to ensure resource matches 
demand

31/03/2021 Paul Wood
Green

Demand has increased, but demand does fluctuate with numbers dropping off at certain times. We have a full 
occupancy assessment criteria which will be reviewed after March 2020. Green

2.5c Exploring options to provide a full emergency accommodation service for single non-
priority homeless

31/03/2021 Paul Wood

Green

We have altered our strategy to include all people including non-priority, which was required as part of the 
Homelessness Reduction Act introduction. The team has been expanded with an additional senior officer 
which allows more time to concentrate on all cases who approach us. Green

2.5e Carry out full review and audit of the homelessness section to determine value for 
money and best practice methodologies

31/03/2021 Paul Wood
Green

This has previously been reviewed and another review will be carried out in the Spring of 2020.
Green

3.11 Work with partner agencies on the development of the Allerdale Multi-Agency 
Problem-solving Hub to provide a more joined up approach to tackling crime, 
disorder and anti-social behaviour across Allerdale’s towns.
Co-ordinate input into the Hub across the Council’s various teams to explore options 
for working with Hub partners and ensure all issues addressed in a co-ordinated 
way.  For example, work to reduce or prevent homelessness and tackle other 
housing related issues such as complaints relating to antisocial and criminal 
behaviours in the rented sector and empty properties. 

Sharon Sewell

Green

We have seen reductions in relation to Anti-Social Behaviour and Crime for Allerdale. Overall we have seen a 
positive reduction month on month with ASB decreasing from 126 in August, to 104 in September (-17%) and 
crime decreasing from 668 to 614 (-8%). Thank you to anyone who has contributed to this through the work 
that you do. We now use combined data from the Police and MyAllerdale to identify the community safety 
priorities across Allerdale, we intend to grow this data to include multiple partners. 

Green

4.1 Support the Allerdale Health and Wellbeing Forum in addressing health  outcomes 
in relation to healthy weight, smoking cessation, healthy attitudes towards alcohol, 
mental wellbeing and ageing well.
Focus in 2018/19 on falls prevention, smoking and healthy weight.

31/03/2020 Nik Hardy

Green

Allerdale H&W Forum core group met in October 2019. Ongoing work to develop Public Health delivery plan. 
Solway Views Exhibition was presented at the West Cumbria Community Forum. Cumbria Healthy Weight 
Partnerships held second meeting. Keswick and Solway ICC health and wellbeing action group is focussing on 
healthy weight. Cockermouth and Maryport ICC action group meeting focus on mental health, drugs and 
alcohol .Allerdale hosted smoking in pregnancy summit. 

Green 

4.2 Support improvements to leisure facilities and open spaces in our communities to 
encourage active participation in physical activity and improve health outcomes 

31/03/2020 Charles Holmes Contractors are on site at Jubilee Park for the play feature installation. The brief for the improvements to the 
area in front of Workington Leisure centre are ready to go out to tender. Equipment for Siddick pond 
improvements through the Water Environment Grant is being sourced. Highfield Squash club improvement 
plan is ongoing, coming into the final stages of internal works with a bid being developed for extra works 
through the RFL. 

Green 

Deliver the actions in the Housing Strategy to reduce or prevent homelessness including:

P
age 67



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/ 
measure

Head of Service
Q2 RAG 
status

2019/20
Q3 update

Q3 RAG 
status

4.3 Promote and deliver a programme of activity to encourage health and active 
lifestyles including a walking and cycling scheme to develop a programme of free 
health walks and cycle rides across Allerdale.

31/03/2020 Charles Holmes

Green

Still working with Active Cumbria to deliver a walking programme. New walk leader training dates set for Q4. 
British Cycling no longer have a local officer, but the lead rides scheme still being delivered through local 
volunteers. Plan is to seek permissions for contacts to set up local forum for the volunteers delivering in 
Allerdale. 

Amber 

4.4 Work with GLL to develop the leisure offer within the Council’s leisure facilities, 
increasing usage across all sites, with a focus on young people, people with a 
disability and those at risk of being inactive.  

31/03/2020 Charles Holmes

Green

Process to streamline memberships is taking place. Proposals are being put together to look at the potential 
for 'free gym' at certain times of the day. Healthwise pilot project working well at Workington. 

Green 

4.5 Improve the provision of leisure and sporting facilities working with partners to 
support future development 

31/03/2020 Charles Holmes/ 
Kevin Kerrigan Green

Over £90K of new kit has been added to the fitness suites across the 4 GLL sites.  Options being looked at to 
enhance the Wave site. Workington received QUEST (external independent accreditation) rating of 
'Excellent', Cockermouth received 'Very Good'. 

Green 

4.6 Work with partners to look at different ways to encourage social prescribing of 
physical activity through the use of community facilities and leisure centres 

Introduce pilots 
in Workington 
and Wigton 
by March 2019

Charles Holmes

Green

Scheme is continuing to run on a reduced scale. Case studies show the programme is really working for those 
who are at risk of long term health issues. Local funding is being sought to sustain project until a decision on a 
large scale, North Cumbria scheme is agreed.

Green 

4.10 Continue to work with developers and planning authorities to ensure that air quality 
impact assessments are carried out - our priority is to maintain good air quality 
within Allerdale and understand the potential impacts of proposed major 
developments individually and collectively on local air quality. 

Maintain 
baseline 
monitoring at 
11 key locations 
until March 
2019

Sharon Sewell

Green

Environmental Health are consulted at pre-planning state on all proposed developments which may impact on 
air quality. We are proactive in ensuring that the borough maintains it low levels of pollution. Air quality 
assessments have been required for developments including potentially polluting industrial applications, 
combined heat and power systems or other combustion method energy production such as gas turbines and 
bio mass boiler applications.

Green

4.11 Deliver the National Food Hygiene Rating Scheme and investigate options for the 
introduction of a new fees scheme for food safety interventions.

from April 2018 Sharon Sewell
Green

There have been no requests for a re score visit in Q3 so no data to establish costings - unable to move 
forward with new fees scheme until data is available. Green

4.16 Work with partners as part of the West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership to 
address the priorities identified the CSP Strategic Plan

31/03/2020 Sharon Sewell

Green

The Allerdale Local Focus Hub is now embedded into Allerdale House. The Hub is key to the tactical delivery of 
the CSP Action Plan. Key project deliverables are linked to the CSP objectives. A performance framework has 
been established that links performance outcomes to the CSP action plan. The CSP support team sit within the 
Hub at Allerdale House. We actively work to promote training initiatives funded by the CSP across all media 
channels, for example the Cyber Security training.

Green

2.4

2.4a Empowering communities to deliver affordable housing through Community Land 
Trusts

2/3 new CLTs 
established by 
2021

Kevin Kerrigan

Green

Two draft Community Housing Fund Grant agreements were sent out in Q3. Once agreed and signed this will 
fully commit the Community Housing Fund budget. The Housing Manager will continue to support existing 
groups as best they can. Any new community groups interested in community led housing will be signposted 
to the Cumbria and Lancaster Community Led Housing HUB.

Green

Quality places to live
Deliver the objective to develop affordable housing in the Housing Strategy including:

P
age 68



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/ 
measure

Head of Service
Q2 RAG 
status

2019/20
Q3 update

Q3 RAG 
status

2.4b Supporting developers to provide a range of options to deliver affordable housing 
through HCA schemes

31/03/2021 Nik Hardy / Kevin 
Kerrigan Green

Meeting held with KCHT to discuss their future plans and current development of affordable housing 
provision in Keswick. Green

2.4c Proactive work with RPs to evaluate allocations for housing to ensure there is a fair 
and transparent approach to support those in greatest housing need

31/03/2021 Nik Hardy / Kevin 
Kerrigan Green

During Q3 there was  one letting on the developments that we check against the local connection.  On-going 
review of LLP being made for minor amendments and to be updated and signed off in Q4. Green

2.4d Maximising affordable housing provision through early discussion/negotiation with 
planning officers and developers

31/03/2021 Nik Hardy / Kevin 
Kerrigan

Green

Discussion on-going with developer on Silloth site.  Early discussion has be held with a local Registered 
Provider re extra care housing in Workington area.  Strategic housing meetings held with 8 key partners to 
discuss market conditions and progress on sites where affordable housing is proposed to be delivered. A 
briefing report to informal executive has also been presented and includes a wider assessments of the 
housing market in Allerdale. 

Green

3.3 Continue to support coastal communities teams and the implementation of their 
economic plans – support delivery of cycle track

31/03/2020 Kevin Kerrigan

Amber

Common Land approval has now been received for the majority of the route. One additional Common Land 
application is required and application has been made. Funding for the cycle path has been confirmed from 
the Coastal Community Fund (£1 million) and Rural Development Programme for England (£250,000). A report 
will be submitted to Executive in Quarter 1 2020/21 to consider tenders to carry out the work and approve 
the appointment of a contractor.

Green

3.4 Implementing the actions contained within the Heritage Strategy to develop a 
Heritage Forum for Allerdale, examine the impact of heritage on council services and 
conduct an impact assessment for heritage in Allerdale

31/03/2020 Kevin Kerrigan/ 
Charles Holmes/ 
Nik Hardy Green

Following a workshop with heritage organisations and practitioners, a draft action plan has been created.

Green

3.5 Work to get Workington Hall off ‘at risk’ register to enhance the heritage offer in 
Workington and make the Hall more sustainable for the future

31/12/2020 Catherine 
Nicholson Green

Pre -contract meeting arranged for 22 January 2020. Provisional start on site in late March and be on site for 
up to six months. Heritage England funding up to 70% of the repair costs Green

3.6

3.6e Develop programme of public realm  improvements incorporating Brow Top, Central 
Way Underpass and Workington Leisure Centre

Phase 2 
31/03/2020

Charles Holmes

Amber

Following approval from Programme Board to proceed with Phased Approach as per Option 1 as detailed on 
Exception Report dated 7.11.19, the  next Milestone is to finalise detailed design and  prepare tender 
documents for end Jan 20. Green

3.9 Undertake a number of high-profile environmental enforcement media campaigns 
raising the awareness of the work of the Council in tackling dog-fouling, littering and 
fly-tipping.

3 campaigns 
undertaken in 
2019/20

Charles Holmes

Green

Schools campaign continue to progress well with over 500 cotton bags issued.  Sweeper signage completed 
and will be added to the vehicles in January.  The vehicle will return to the school and the winner presented 
with a prize. Record numbers of FPN's continue to be issued with Duty of Care and Dog Fouling being the 
team's focus.  

Green

3.10

3.10a Delivering Empty Property Grants 10 grants in 
2019/20 

Kevin Kerrigan

Green

Two Empty Homes Grants have been completed in Q3. All other approved grants are being monitored by the 
team and letters will be sent to all outstanding Empty Homes Grant cases in January to advise that works must 
be completed by the end of March 2020. There are two cases that are awaiting information to be approved 
and these will have 12 months to complete works once approved. 

Amber 

3.10c Develop an Empty Homes Strategy Nik Hardy / Kevin 
Kerrigan Green

Internal meeting set up to discuss approach to empty homes.  It was agreed that a paper was to be developed 
but scope will also include commercial empty units. Green

Deliver activity as part of the Housing Strategy to reduce the number of long term empty homes including:

Undertake a programme of improvements to our nature reserves and open spaces to encourage access to and enjoyment 
of open spaces and conservation of the natural environment:

P
age 69



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/ 
measure

Head of Service
Q2 RAG 
status

2019/20
Q3 update

Q3 RAG 
status

4.7 Support festivals and events through grants support and direct funding to enhance 
the vitality and raise the profile of the area and offer cultural and sporting events to 
improve health and wellbeing

15 festivals and 
events through 
grant support 
by March 2019

Charles Holmes

Green

An Outline Business case (POD) will be completed by 29/02/20 to set out options.  This will need to be 
approved by the Transformation and Commercial Board and then move to project implementation.  

Green

4.9 Improve the environmental quality of our beaches through delivery of our Beach 
Management Plan and taking part in the LovemyBeach campaign.  We intend to 
maintain a bathing water classification of “good" at Allonby. We will actively support 
and promote the "Call of Nature" campaign and support ‘Turning Tides’.

31/03/2020 Sharon Sewell

Green

Allonby received its 2020 Bathing Water Classification for 'Good' with works due to update signage before 
May 2020 to be complete in Q4. Taste Christmas to promote the LoveMyBeach message was complete in 
December 2019 despite 1 day of trading due to weather disruption. Recent partnership working with partners 
in January 2020, opportunities to work with Environment Agency and Copeland Borough Council for drainage 
issues to be explored. Active Coast 2020 plans for July 2020 to take place in Q4. Explore opportunities of Refill 
Initiative and completion of LMB Business Pack. Continue to actively support and promote 'Call of Nature' and 
support 'Turning Tides'.

Green

4.13

4.13b Ensure new legislation around the licensing of HMOS is enforced and all HMOs 
falling into the new licensing criteria are licensed. 

Issue new HMO 
licenses Oct 
2018 onwards 

Sharon Sewell

Amber

We are making sure that all current HMO licences are up date, however due to resources we have not been 
able to progress with a proactive programme to identify potential HMO's which would fall under the new 
definition. We have a plan in place and are exploring options to assist implementation of the plan. Red

4.15

4.15a Delivering a funding programme for small to medium flood prevention work in our 
communities.

Allocate 
funding by 
March 2019

Paul Wood
Green

Schemes have been appraised as and when they are submitted, none submitted in Q3.  This funding has now 
come to an end and no further applications can be taken. Blue

4.15b Continue to support partner organisations especially the Environment Agency to 
access relevant funding to allow communities to become more resilient to flooding 
events

31/03/2020 Paul Wood
Green

Multi agency meetings well established and ongoing, Allerdale are members of all associated meetings and 
will continue to deliver benefits for the residents of Allerdale and Cumbria Green

Transformation and governance
5.1 Deliver the Customer Access Strategy to improve the service we deliver to 

customers through improving service consistency, delivering right first time and 
improving the use of customer intelligence to develop and design the service. 
Promote self-service where appropriate to streamline processes between customer 
and the organisation.

31/03/2019 Paul Wood

Green

In order to deliver a self sustaining Council all services will undergo a Service Review in 2020.  This will be to 
understand where the Council is in relation to where it wants to get to ( self sufficiency, excellent public 
services).  A Strategic Review will take place starting 20th January and last for 6 weeks.  If in some areas there 
are things identified as quick wins to improve customer service, and or to take out waste then these will be 
prioritised  and a  number of lean process reviews will be undertaken.   The ambitions within the Customer 
Access Strategy will be part of defining where the Council wants to get to.   

Green 

5.2 Undertake a Channel shift programme to significantly increase the use of online and 
self-service channels with a focus for 2018/19 on promoting online billing

31/03/2020
100 
registrations for 
online billing 
per month

Paul Wood

Green

In order to deliver a self sustaining Council all services will undergo a Service Review in 2020.  This will be to 
understand where the Council is in relation to where it wants to get to ( self sufficiency, excellent public 
services).  A Strategic Review will take place starting 20th January and last for 6 weeks.  If in some areas there 
are things identified as quick wins to improve customer service, and or to take out waste then these will be 
prioritised  and a  number of lean process reviews will be undertaken.   The ambitions within the Channel Shift 
Programme  will be part of defining where the Council wants to get to.   

Green 

Deliver activity in the Housing Strategy to raise standards in the private rented sector including:

Undertake activity with partners to improve flooding resilience across Allerdale including:

P
age 70



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/ 
measure

Head of Service
Q2 RAG 
status

2019/20
Q3 update

Q3 RAG 
status

5.3 Continue programme of co-location of customer access points across the district 
into libraries/other appropriate locations. Costs associated with the moves to 
include branding, accommodation changes, advertising, ICT moves etc.

One additional 
co-located 
customer 
access point by 
March 2019

Paul Wood

Green

Sites are being investigated however as with above this work will now follow a service review.

Green 

5.4 Review our Revenues and Benefits Shared arrangements with Carlisle CC to ensure 
that future arrangements provide value for money

Review by May 
2020
Revised arrange-
ments in place 
by Aug 2020

Paul Wood

Green

Initial discussions at the partnership joint operating board have taken place, ICT options appraisal results to be 
presented Jan 2020. The outcome of the appraisal will inform the partners on the next steps

Green 

5.5 Develop and begin delivery of a new Digital Strategy with a focus on Digital 
Customer Services, a Digitally enabled workforce, Digital Skills and Digital Citizens 
across Allerdale.
Developing a managed ICT services offer for organisations and businesses across the 
district.
Review remaining shared ICT arrangements with Carlisle CC

Develop 
strategy by 
December 2018
Dec 2018
Aug 2018

Paul Wood

Amber

In order to deliver a self sustaining Council all services will undergo a Service Review in 2020.  This will be to 
understand where the Council is in relation to where it wants to get to ( self sufficiency, excellent public 
services).  A Strategic Review will take place starting 20th January and last for 6 weeks.  If in some areas there 
are things identified as quick wins to improve customer service, and or to take out waste then these will be 
prioritised  and a  number of lean process reviews will be undertaken.   The ambitions within the Digital 
Strategy will be part of defining where the Council wants to get to.   The Development of Town Centre Wi-Fi 
original business case ( that it is self sustaining) no longer stacks up so this project is under review.  LoRaWan 
and Internet of Things are not projects after initial exploration of these ideas have both now been closed as a 
business case could not be made that supported continued development.

Green

5.6 Deliver the Digital Allerdale project to improve digital access including:
• Town centre Wi-Fi
• Business broadband
• Developing the Internet of Things
• Developing the use of LoRaWAN

Pilot scheme  
running by June 
2018 
Further 
schemes 
developed by 

Paul Wood This project has now been merged with 5.5.

5.7 Implement new contracting arrangements for waste and recycling, recycling 
reprocessing, street cleansing and grounds maintenance 

Commen-
cement of new 
arrange- ments 
by April 2020

Charles Holmes

Red

Mobilisation Plan in place and being implemented towards service transfer to Allerdale Waste Services 
(LATCo) on 4th April 2020. This moblisation risk register and project plan include a number of actions/ risk that 
are RED. Work to mitigate actions and risks is being progressed through the project team/ project board. Red

5.10 Implement the Asset Management Plan in order to maximise income for the Council 
including the development of new units at Reedlands Road

31/03/2019 Kevin Kerrigan/ 
Catherine 
Nicholson Green

Reedlands Road Additional survey, ground investigation and inflation costs have increased costs compared to 
the original budget as detailed in exception report and corresponding growth bid. Growth bid was approved 
in December 2019 and project remains on track with current spend forecasts. Corresponding change request 
submitted to MHCLG. 

Amber 

P
age 71



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/ 
measure

Head of Service
Q2 RAG 
status

2019/20
Q3 update

Q3 RAG 
status

5.11 Undertake an assessment of the impact of the changes to local government 
financing (the Fair Funding Review, the move to 75% retention of business rates and 
the reset of baselines in 2021) so that the Council can understand and plan for the 
implications in our Medium Term Financial Plan

31/03/2020 Catherine 
Nicholson

Amber

The Provisional Local Government settlement for 2020-21 was announced on 20 December 2019. The 2020-21 
announcement is the first and only year of the Spending Round 2019, with future years’ announcements 
dependent on a number of factors, including: Spending Review 2020, the outcome of the Fair Funding Review, 
the BRR Reset, the move to 75% BRR and any reform of the New Homes Bonus scheme.  No further update 
provided on progress with the Fair Funding Review or BRR scheme. However, in line with the Technical 
Consultation document issued in October 2019 Government has announced that although legacy payments 
will be paid in 2020/21 in respect  of prior year allocations, no legacy payments will be made in respect of the 
New Homes Bonus  allocations for 2020/21. Government has also announced that it will consult on the future 
of the NHB in spring of 2020 with a view to moving to a new more targeted approach which is aligned with 
other measures around planning performance. The consultation will also include consideration of the legacy 
payments from prior years. 

Amber

5.12 Undertake work with new Cumbria Business Rates Pool to ensure that the risk to 
Allerdale is minimised

31/03/2020 Catherine 
Nicholson

Green

Before entering into the business rates pool the potential risks were reviewed to ensure they were at an 
acceptable level and where necessary mitigated through the pool agreement. The business rates pool 
produces regular in-year projections and monitors national and local risks closely to ensure the Authority is 
aware of all relevant issues and appropriate action is taken to address emerging issues 

Green

5.18 Deliver a member development programme to support the Council in achieving its 
ambitions

30/04/2020 Sharon Sewell

Green

Councillors PDPs commenced in January 2020 to continue through to the end of February/early March. Any 
identified learning and development needs will be fed in to the Programme for 2020/21, approved by the 
Member Development Working Group Green

5.19 Deliver programmes and initiatives to increase awareness of terrorism and train 
personnel on the requirements of the Prevent strategy as stated in the 
Government’s Counter Terrorism strategy CONTEST 

April 2018 
onwards

Paul Wood

Amber

B Chambers sits on the Prevent Board for Cumbria and cascades all information internally as and when 
required. Further work is required to resurrect the internal Prevent meetings and establish further protocols Amber

5.20 Implementation of web-based Arcus system in Housing and Health, Development 
Management, Building Control and Licensing

April 2018 
onwards

Kevin Kerrigan/ 
Sharon Sewell Red

A meeting was held recently with Arcus senior management. Arcus are reviewing their resources and are 
developing a new project plan to meet our objectives. Red

Definitions

BRAG Progress against plan

Blue Complete

Red There are significant  concerns over achieving outputs / there is serious slippage in the timetable / there are major issues to rectify

Amber There are concerns over achieving deadlines or outputs  / there are issues to rectify, but plans are in place to get the project back on track

Green Everything is on target / satisfactory progress is being made / no action required

P
age 72



Appendix B - Q3 2019/20 report - key performance indicators 

PI no. PI name
Head of 
Service

Frequency Good is?
2018/19
Annual 

value

2019/20
Q1 target

2019/20
Q1 value

RAG Q1 DOT Q1
2019/20

Q2 target
2019/20
Q2 value

RAG Q2 DOT Q2
2019/20

Q3 target
2019/20
Q3 value

RAG Q3 DOT Q3
2019/20
Annual 
target

Q3 commentary

KEG02 No. of businesses engaged Nik Hardy Quarterly High 76 5 4 A q 8 8 G p 12 73 G p 75

7 businesses attended the Large employers forum. 63 businesses were invited to form a business 
group in Maryport and 49 attended the initial meeting. At the 2nd workshop, 73 were invited 
and 31 attended - a lower number due to the proximity to Christmas but a good number 
nevertheless. 4 businesses enquiried about the Loans fund, but have not yet resulted in any new 
applications.

KDS01 % of major planning applications determined 
within statutory period

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Monthly High 94% 90% 100% G tu 90% 90% G q 90% 100% G p 90% On target.

KDS02 % of minor and other planning applications 
determined within statutory period 

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Monthly High 89% 90% 88% A p 90% 92% G p 90% 92% G tu 90% We now have more resource devoted to checking delegated reports to improve performance. 

KFS02 % of invoices from local Cumbrian businesses paid 
within 14 days

Catherine 
Nicholson

Monthly High 93.1% 98.0% 92.1% A q 98.0% 96.9% A p 98.0% 96.2% A q 98.0%
Q3 2019/20 compares favourably with the same quarter in 2018/19 when only 94.9% was 
achieved.  The figure for payments to local suppliers within 14 calendar days (10 working days) is 
improving steadily year on year.

KCTC16
% of Council spend (less than £50k) on goods and 
services with local (Allerdale) suppliers and 
companies  

Brendan 
Carlin

Quarterly High 38.2 42.0% 24.8% R q 42.0% 39.5% A p 42.0% 31.7% R q 42.0%

The figure in this quarter is slightly down on Q2 due to natural volatility and variation across 
each quarter. Total spend was higher in the last quarter overall and included a high spend on 
specialist equipment as part of the Disabled Facilities Grant that the council administers. Some 
procurements will always require specialist goods or services from out of the area, where these 
cannot be provided in Cumbria.

KCTC17
% of Council spend (less than £50k) on goods and 
services with local (Cumbrian) suppliers and 
companies  

Brendan 
Carlin

Quarterly High New for 
2019/20

42.0% 46.5% G p 42.0% 48.6% G p 42.0% 43.1% G q 42.0% Performance remains above target.   

KCS03a Leisure centre usage - Keswick
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High 74462 19007 19442 G p 27900 25119 A p 11700 12637 G q 75951 Q3 target achieved. Changing room refresh has been well received. 

KCS03b Leisure centre usage - Cockermouth
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High 175490 41445 45693 G q 41300 43754 G q 45300 47135 G p 179000

Q3 target exceded.  More exercise to music classes added to meet demand, new activities for 
older people have been introduced as well as some new key pieces of gym kit which have helped 
keep members happy. Problem of indoor space and parking capacity still remains but options 
being looked at.

KCS03c Leisure centre usage - Workington
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High 312374 78914 74998 A q 84650 71935 R q 72800 64180 R q 327992

Still slightly below increase target for Q3, membership levels have levelled off. A couple of 
evening closures due to replacing steel works. New gym due to open in coming months will see 
increased competition, membership offers and deals are being prepared to mitigate any 
potential loss. Brochure of Allerdale facilities and activities has been produced and will be 
distributed directly to homes in February. Introduction of 'free gym/fitness' is being considered 
at quiet times. 

KCS03d The Wave usage
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High 25395 6176 7434 G q 9300 9841 G p 4600 8133 G q 26665
Q3 Target achieved. New signage to go up all around the centre (internally and externally) with 
the GLL branding, so will look more like a leisure centre. 

KCS04d Leisure Centre usage by target groups 
(concessionary users) (Workington and Wave) 

Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High New for 
2019/20

5000 3540 R p 13230 13243 G p 11780 11207 A q 17778
Confusion over the concessionary membership at the Wave being cleared up and will be 
promoted through appropriate streams. GLL aware that more could be done to promote the 
Wave fitness offer and this is being looked at.  

KCS04e Leisure Centre usage by target groups (60+) 
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High New for 
2019/20

64900 76307 G p 15502 17478 G p 15908 20252 G p 263434 Q3 target exceeded. 

Economic opportunity and growth

Stronger and healthier communities

P
age 73



PI no. PI name
Head of 
Service

Frequency Good is?
2018/19
Annual 

value

2019/20
Q1 target

2019/20
Q1 value

RAG Q1 DOT Q1
2019/20

Q2 target
2019/20
Q2 value

RAG Q2 DOT Q2
2019/20

Q3 target
2019/20
Q3 value

RAG Q3 DOT Q3
2019/20
Annual 
target

Q3 commentary

KCS04f Leisure Centre usage by target groups (juniors) 
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High New for 
2019/20

68700 71260 G p 50435 47474 A p 41210 44134 G q 281833 Q3 target achieved. 

KHH04a % of homeless decisions made within guideline 56 
days

Paul Wood Monthly High 100% 100% 100% G tu 100% 100% G tu 100% 100% G tu 100% All decisions made within the guidelines

KHH04b % of successful homeless preventions and relief 
outcomes

Paul Wood Quarterly High New for 
2019/20

50% 64% G p 50% 38% R q 50% 65% G p 50%
Prevention applications were 33, relief applications were 49 so the overall percentage for this 
quarter equates to 65%

KHH09* % of programmed private water supplies sampled
Sharon 
Sewell

Monthly High 95% 100.0% 100.0% G p 100.0% 95.7% A q 100.0% 97.0% A p 100%
1 property not sampled due to it having a Reg 18 Notice served on it whilst improvements are 
made. The water will be sampled in Q4.

KHH10 % of food safety inspections carried out (Category 
A-B)

Sharon 
Sewell

Quarterly High 86% 100% 80% R q 100% 93% A p 100% 86% R q 100%
The figure represents one inspection out of seven not carried out within the timeframe due to 
not being able to access the premises.   The outstanding inspection will be completed early in Q4.

KCTC01a Time taken to process Housing Benefit new claims 
(no. of days)

Paul Wood Monthly Low 13 15 9 G p 15 7 G p 15 6 G p 15 Target exceeded.

KCTC01b Time taken to process Council Tax new claims (no. 
of days)

Paul Wood Monthly Low 14 15 14 G tu 15 13 G p 15 12 G p 15 Target exceeded.

KCTC02 Time taken to process Housing Benefit/Council 
Tax change of circumstances (no. of days)

Paul Wood Monthly Low 3 4 3 G q 4 3 G tu 4 3 G tu 4 Target exceeded.

KCS01* 
(NI192)

% of household waste sent for recycling
Charles 
Holmes

Quarterly High 33.4% 41.8% 43.6% G p 23.0% 33.0% G q 31.0% Q3 data not yet avilable. Data awaited from CCC to calculate KPI.

KCS02* 
(NI191)

Kg of household waste sent to landfill
Charles 
Holmes

Quarterly Low 585.09 132.00 128.20 G q 151.54 128.00 G q 560.00 Q3 data not yet avilable. Data awaited from CCC to calculate KPI.

KCS06 Incidents of fly tipping
Charles 
Holmes

Quarterly Low 927 225 135 G p 225 154 G q 225 152 G p 900 Fewer incidents than target and slightly fewer than Q2.

KHH01 No. of affordable homes facilitated by the Council Nik Hardy Quarterly High 79 12 11 A q 12 17 G p 23 6 R q 70
During Q3 6 units were delivered - 3 in Wigton, 1 Seaton  and 2 in Brigham.  The number of 
affordable homes delivered are determined by the developer output as opposed to being a 
performance related target as such,  the Council has limited control over the delivery rates.   

KDS03 No. of housing units granted planning permission
Kevin 
Kerrigan

Quarterly High 488 107 47 R q 107 152 G p 107 68 R q 429
Major housing applications still being held in abeyance due to issues being encountered 
especially following late matters being riased by statutory consultees esp CCC Highways/LLFA. 

KDS04 No. of new housing completions (cummulative)
Kevin 
Kerrigan

Quarterly High 337 84 77 A q 168 141 R p 252 191 R p 339 We have limited influence over this KPI. 

KDS08 Full Plans determined within 5 weeks (Building 
Control)

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Monthly High 91% 85% 86% G q 85% 82% A q 85% 83% A p 85% Slightly below target.

Quality places to live

P
age 74



PI no. PI name
Head of 
Service

Frequency Good is?
2018/19
Annual 

value

2019/20
Q1 target

2019/20
Q1 value

RAG Q1 DOT Q1
2019/20

Q2 target
2019/20
Q2 value

RAG Q2 DOT Q2
2019/20

Q3 target
2019/20
Q3 value

RAG Q3 DOT Q3
2019/20
Annual 
target

Q3 commentary

KGOV01 % of Local Land Charges Searches carried out 
within 10 working days

Sharon 
Sewell

Monthly High 99.46% 95.00% 100.00% G p 95.00% 100.00% G tu 95.00% 97.84% G q 95.00% On target

KHH07a % of Disabled Facilities Grants approved within 12 
weeks from receipt of referral to approval 

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Quarterly High 77% 85% 91% G p 85% 74% R q 85% 79% A p 85%

42 grants were approved in Q3. 9 were outside of the 12 week target. Delays in approvals were 
as a result of contractors not providing quotes in timely manner and delays in registered 
providers confirming paying tenants’ contribution where appropriate. The Housing Grants 
Officer post remains vacant.

KHH06a No. of Empty Homes Grants completed
Kevin 
Kerrigan

Quarterly High 6 1 1 G tu 1 1 G tu 3 2 A p 10

2 Empty Homes Grants have been completed in Q3. All other approved grants are being 
monitored by the team and letters will be sent to all outstanding Empty Homes Grant cases in 
January to advise that works must be completed by the end of March 2020. There are two cases 
that are awaiting information to be approved and these will have 12 months to complete works 
once approved. 

Transformation and corporate health

KCTC05 Abandoned calls rate (%) Paul Wood Monthly Low 8% 7% 19% R q 7% 13% R p 7% 9% R p 7%
Increased demand from General Election enquiries has slowed any performance improvement 
over the last quarter, however we are still moving towards reaching target.   

KCTC06 Customer service satisfaction score Paul Wood Quarterly High 92% 85% 98% G p - - - - 85% 94% G q 85%
Whilst there has been reduced number of surveys undertaken in order to re allocate resources 
to increased household waste and the General Election enquiries those surveyed are still highly 
satisfied with the service received.

KCTC07 Average no. of website unique page views per day Nik Hardy Monthly High 3188 3000 4340 G q 3000 4067 G q 3000 2993 A q 3000 Website usage is slightly below target, but will have dipped slighlty around Christmas.

KCTC08 Average no. of Facebook likes per day Nik Hardy Monthly High 2529 2000 3863 G p 2000 4386 G p 2000 4662 G p 2000 The number of Facebook likes and followers has continued to grow. 

KCTC09 Average no. of Twitter followers per day Nik Hardy Monthly High 6427 6000 6696 G p 6000 6918 G p 6000 7046 G p 6000 The number of followers of Twitter continues to rise.   

KCTC10a Average no. of ICT Support calls logged per day Paul Wood Monthly Low 19 20 16 G tu 20 13 G p 20 15 G q 20
Average number of calls is relatively stable at around 15 calls a day.  This is primarily due to the 
environment not undergoing major change at this time.

KCTC11 % of ICT support calls resolved within SLA Paul Wood Monthly High 90% 90% 90% G tu 90% 91% G p 90% 90% G q 90% Target achieved.

KCTC12a Overall percentage of time systems available for 
use

Paul Wood Monthly High 99.9% 99.9% 99.2% A q 99.9% 100.0% G p 99.9% 100.0% G tu 99.9% Target exceeded.

KCTC13* NNDR collection rate Paul Wood Monthly High 98.58% 31.12% 30.84% A q 56.77% 57.60% G p 82.77% 83.25% G q 98.20%
Currently on target, however there is still concern overall target may not be reached at Q4 due 
to trading difficulties on the high street, including the pub and restaurant trades.

KCTC14* Council Tax collection rate Paul Wood Monthly High 97.46% 29.75% 29.67% A q 57.53% 57.60% G tu 85.42% 85.49% G p 97.80% On target 

KFS01 % invoices paid in 30 days
Catherine 
Nicholson

Monthly High 97.8% 98.0% 95.6% A q 98.0% 98.3% G p 98.0% 97.2% A q 98.0%
Q3 2019/20 slightly lower than the same quarter 2018/19 when 98.6% was achieved.  The target 
of 98% was missed in October and November but rallied again in December to 99.1%.

KFS06a % of invoiced debt collected within 30 days of 
invoicing

Catherine 
Nicholson

Monthly High 58% n/a 54% n/a q n/a 59% n/a p n/a 61.7% n/a p n/a Percentage is consistent both with previous months and Q3 2018/19

KFS06b % of debt outstanding for over 90 days
Catherine 
Nicholson

Monthly Low 30.0% n/a 13% n/a q n/a 41% n/a p n/a 28.67% n/a q n/a
Percentage of debts over 90 days has been consistent at the end of each month in this quarter 
and also is consistent to Q3 in 2018/19

KEG04 Occupancy rates of Council’s property portfolio
Kevin 
Kerrigan

Monthly High 93.0% 90.0% 93.0% G tu 90.0% 93.0% G tu 90.0% 93.0% G tu 90.0% Marketing of empty units being prioritised with th e hope that empty units will be taken up soon.

P
age 75



PI no. PI name
Head of 
Service

Frequency Good is?
2018/19
Annual 

value

2019/20
Q1 target

2019/20
Q1 value

RAG Q1 DOT Q1
2019/20

Q2 target
2019/20
Q2 value

RAG Q2 DOT Q2
2019/20

Q3 target
2019/20
Q3 value

RAG Q3 DOT Q3
2019/20
Annual 
target

Q3 commentary

KPR01
Average no. of working days lost to sickness 
absence per employee per annum

Sharon 
Sewell

Monthly Low 12.50 7.00 5.40 G p 7.00 9.16 R q 7.00 11.40 R q 7.00
Continuation of some long term absences cases are causing the increase in figures to 
remain/continue. Increase in the number of incidents of short term absence, with a common 
cause of absence being stomach bugs/flu. The time of year also impacts this. 

KPR06 % of workforce with zero absence
Sharon 
Sewell

Monthly High 89% 90% 92% G p 90% 91% G q 90% 86% A q 90%
Decrease in the % of workforce with zero absence - see notes for KPR01a - increase in sickness 
incidents. 

Definitions

RAG
R Significantly worse than target (usually >10% from target) – urgent action required to improve performance
A Within agreed tolerance of target (usually up to 10% from target) - some action may be required to improve performance
G On, or better than, target

DOT Direction of travel arrows indicate whether performance since the last comparable period has become:
p Better
tu Stayed the same
q Worse

'Comparable period' - this is usually the previous month or quarter.  

* For a few indicators we compare back to the previous year's comparable quarters (these are KHH09, KCTC13, KCTC14, KCS01, KCS02)

P
age 76



Appendix C - Corporate risk and issues log (risk scores >9) @ 20/01/20

ID Ri
sk

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Im
pa

ct
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Ri
sk

 S
co

re

Re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y

M
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

M
iti

ga
tin

g 
A

ct
io

ns
 p

la
nn

ed

Po
st

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Im

pa
ct

Po
st

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Li

ke
lih

oo
d

Po
st

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Ri

sk
 S

co
re

35 Significant unbudgeted expenditure arising 
from severe weather conditions.

Further deterioration of sea defences and impact on low lying coastal 
properties and land.
Landslips occuring following severe weather
Cost of business disruption e.g. NNDR collection
Increase cost of business as usual services and customers as resource is 
used to support 

4 4 16 Nicholson, 
Catherine

Extent of damage identified and external funding opportunities being explored 
Report produced identifying issues and options and circulated to Director
Where works are required to be undertaken, these are recorded and costs estimated to ensure that financing 
can be identified, either from external sources identified by the finance sub-group or from Allerdale BC's 

 budget and internal resources. 

Action has been taken to address highest risk area (Well Lane, Maryport). Topographic survey and initial 
appraisal have been undertaken. Inspection has revealed further structural inspections will be required and 
additional works will be required additional to the original anticipated costs. Consultants are acting in 
connection with the identified additional works.
Capital bid w for 19/20 for outstanding works to Mill Field.

2 2 4

52 Failure to establish cost effective waste and 
recycling service in Allerdale, delivering to 
the needs of the local community. 

The new business delivery model that has been commissioned has 
resulted in signficant service failings. There is a neccesity to revisit the 
business delivery model and resource requirements to enable these key 
services to be delivered. Failure to identify and deliver a new model will 
have a signficant impact onthe business of the Council. 

4 4 16 Seekings, 
Andrew

Members will be provided with all options prior to making a decision on the proposed new business delivery 
model. This will be developed fully through the preparation of a detailed costed business case.

Full options appraisal is being developed for the Council to consider and agree, following which a detailed 
business case will be developed to establish the operating model and costs of the new model.

4 1 4

54 Cyber Security - Failure to maintain secure 
information systems and networks against 
cyber attacks.

Service outage, loss of data, business disruption, reduced trust from 
stakeholders, cyber crime, information lost or stolen, regulatory fines, 
regulatory investigation, failure to provide customer service, loss of 
income.

4 4 16 Wood, Paul Measures
Annual Independent penetration and internal vulnerability health check.   
Systems migrated to the cloud - office 365, Service Desk, Parking, Telephony, Contact Centre, Customer 
Platform, Council Spatial Systems and Website.
ICT Policies replaced and deployed, GDPR security and data management training provided.
PSN Health check and remedial actions undertaken
Malware solutions updated to protect against latest vulnerabilities
Identity and Access Management Tools being implemented to secure access to cloud based applications

Mitigation Plans
 1. Cloud Migra on con nues
 2. Review to be undertaken of Backup Solu ons
 3.Further Awareness and educa on program being rolled out to all of our people through new ways of 

working  sessions
 4.Iden ty and Access Management Solu ons to be implemented to protect access to cloud based systems
 5.New means to connect to applica ons reducing requirements for specific device configura ons in test 

currently
6. Cyber security training workshops to be delivered
7. Business Continuity exercise around cyber security

4 2 8

59 Failure to implement the Arcus platform 
across Planning, Building Control, EH, 
Licensing. There have been ongoing issues 
with the company implementing the system 
due to lack of resource, this has resulted in 
failure to meet any deadlines to go live with 
the system in any area.

Currently running on legacy systems which are maintained on a pay as 
you go rather than contractual support arrangement.

Failure to achieve savings detailed in the business case, loss of 
confidence with staff, increased costs and a drain on resources.

4 4 16 Wood, Paul Rollout of building control, planning & land charges, as well as phase 2 reg services  by contract end  Nov 2019 Contractual challenge sent to Arcus Global, shadow project established to investigate procurement of 
alternative system 
Additional project management resource assigned (Ian Davidson) to focus delivery

0

4 Failure to continue providing value for 
money for expenditure

Inability to fulfil statutory obligations. Cease discretionary services. 
Cannot succeed as a council.  Unable to achieve plans, loss of key staff 
and or services, further use of reserves. Waste due to inefficient 
processes.

4 3 12 Seekings, 
Andrew

5 Year sustainability plan agreed by Executive.  Reserves above minimum level. Star Chamber approach 
adopted to improve accountability and responsibility for budget management. Tailor made financial 
workshops for budget holders quarterly.  Budget timetable and reporting managed effectively. Forecasting out 
puts examined and challenged at SMT regularly.  Increasing demand for monthly performance indicator 
information at SMT monthly to drive efficiency and effectiveness. Sector advisors – treasury guidance. 
Reducing spend programme – monitored.
The Commercial and Commissioning Boards should drive cost and time performance information relating to 
value for money and productivity. This should include detailed business cases and options appraisals to 
support informed decision making.                                                        
Council plan projects and new areas of business activity should be subject to a structured options appraisal 
using the programme office methodology to encourage innovation and the consideration of alternative 
business and delivery models. Projects should include clear measurable, agreed outputs to demonstrate the 
value added by the expenditure.     Risk information in the Corporate Risks and Issues Log should be refreshed 
on an ongoing basis as changes occur to ensure it reflects current risk management activities. A risk evaluation 
of the high risks (red) should be completed by the Senior Management Team monthly. 
Minimum reserve position and self sufficiency targets monitored and reviewed by S151 Officer on risk basis

SMT are developing an Organisational Development Plan to support the drive for efficiency and growth. Value 
for Money will be a key driver for these plans. 1. Transformation Board manages the budget. 2. In service 
review. 3. Improvement Workshops - SMT to pilot. 4. Elaine to design - commissioning/procurement training.

3 3 9

6 Failure to achieve necessary cultural and 
organisational change. 

Do not achieve the vision to deliver the best public services possible. 
Staff not understanding their roles and responsibilities within the 
operating model. Don’t retain and develop skilled staff, resources don’t 
meet business objectives. Key roles become difficult to fill. Resource 
cannot deliver plans.  

4 3 12 Eccles, kelly HR business partner approach. New behaviours framework released in 19/20.

Organisational Development Strategy agreed to drive the actions to improve the culture.

Deliver Organisational Development Strategy actions to develop the organisations culture to meet the strategic 
objectives.
Embedding of the What Great Looks Like behaviours into all appropriate organisational polices and procedures 
including recruitment and selection, appraisal, performance.
Clear Performance Management so employees know what is expected of them. All HofS to have succession 
plan so we are growing own talent.
Leadership training including mentoring and coaching support

3 2 6

P
age 77



ID Ri
sk

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Im
pa

ct
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Ri
sk

 S
co

re

Re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y

M
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

M
iti

ga
tin

g 
A

ct
io

ns
 p

la
nn

ed

Po
st

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Im

pa
ct

Po
st

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Li

ke
lih

oo
d

Po
st

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Ri

sk
 S

co
re

14 Business continuity plans do not meet 
business needs

The Council does not comply with its duties as a Category 1 Responder 
under CCA. Priority services are not maintained,. Resulting in bad 
publicity and loss of confidence in management,  delayed income 
collection, increased unbudgeted expenditure costs.

4 3 12 Nicholson, 
Catherine

16/02/2017 – Cloud based Business continuity software has been implemented, accessible from any internet 
capable device, relevant staff have received training on its use. Departmental plans combined into central 
Business Continuity plan containing sections for dealing with Initial Incident actions, Communications, 
Recovery and Restoration phases, together with managing impact on the Council. Solway House agreed as 
alternative location for DDR set up site, control centre and priority services. ICT infrastructure and data links in 
place to allow restoration of required servers and access to data backups located at Carlisle. Telephony system 
transferred to BT OnePhone fully mobile based system removing requirement for server access via Allerdale 
House. Contact Centre transferred to a ‘cloud’ based solution allowing access via any internet capable device, 
regardless of location. Property Services have provided a plan identifying space within building for incident 
response team and priority services.  Business Interruption insurance in place and Insurance cover in respect of 
council assets, reinstatement of data, additional increased cost of working.
Business interruption insurance relating to specified supplier investigated and amendments to cover made.
Business recovery plan template has been updated to capture additional information about resource 
requirements for priority services, details of staff to be relocated to Solway House and other potential 
locations and has been circulated to Heads of Service

Management
 i.Standing item on SMT agenda
 ii.Heads of Service tasked with ensuring that their department’s plans are brought up to date, and regularly 

monitored.
 iii.Named member(s) of staff from each department iden fied as being responsible for collec ng and upda ng 

information to the Business Continuity site.
 iv.Regular mee ngs scheduled with Emergency Planning officer to co-ordinate responses & requirements.

Operational
 i.All staff and members have access to the plans from a link on the Intranet Homepage (Resources – Corporate - 

Business Continuity).
 ii.Standing item on all team mee ngs agendas.
 iii.Team mee ngs to be revisited by lead officer to emphasise the need for all members of staff to be aware of 

the Business Continuity Plan, and how it affects their role.
Teams visited to date, Financial Services, Asset Management, Place Development & Housing management 
team, Legal & Licensing, Electoral Services, Assurance & Audit, Democratic Services, HR, Food Safety & 
Occupational Health, Environmental Protection

3 3 9

38 Failure to demonstrate and achieve 
informed decision making 

Financial, operational and reputational risk
More opportunity for challenge 
(legal/ombudsman/political/public/media)
Failure to deliver open, transparent and accountable process in 
accordance with Good Governance

4 3 12 Sewell, 
Sharon

Review of Constitution and scheme of delegation 

Process for Open and Transparent reporting

Programme/Project Management approach for transformational and key projects

Further embedding of decision making framework and the transparency agenda.

Embed the programmes and projects office decision making framework following the creation of the 
programme office.

Training and Development is in progress with members and key officers associated with key decisions

4 1 4

48 Inability to deliver the council plan due to 
the consequences of Brexit 

strategic priorities are not met
improvements are not made
lives in allerdale are not improved
cannot deliver value for money
reduced growth

4 3 12 Hardy, Nik Scenario planning session completed with Assurance, Risk and Audit Manager.

Ongoing monitoring of policy developments by the Policy Team and discussion at policy team management 
meetings. 

Internal working group has been established including representatives from across the Council 

Key Officers must remain part of discussions with stakeholders
The situation will be monitored through the Strategy, Policy and Performance team
Information updates from professional bodies should be shared with SMT on a regular basis
Identify strategy setting groups and ensure we are part of these discussions.
Involve more people in the information updates.

4 3 12

53 Move to 75% retention of business rates 
(prev 100%) - and the delay from 2019/20 
to 2020/21 - depending on new parliament

Impact on the medium term financial plan.
Potential loss of growth depending on re-sets
Difficulty in planning for growth and retaining income

3 4 12 Nicholson, 
Catherine

Whole scheme has now been delayed due to the snap general election.
Awaiting Queens Speech - new legislation
Consultation out Dec 18 as part of provisional settlement 19/20

Continued membership of Cumbria NNDR group
LG futures events for updates
Consultations and DCLG statements
Pilot potential will be reported to Executive Council in January 2018. - 
Unsuccessful in the 2018/19 pilot application but have resubmitted our bid for a 75% pilot in 19/20
NOT awarded PILOT - but new Cumbria Wide pool agreed for 2018/19
75% retention confirmed as part of local government settlement

3 3 9

55 Information is not managed in line with 
policy, procedure and regulatory 
requirements.  Failure to deliver the 
requirements of the Data Protection 
Regulations.

1. Breach of GDPR & financial implications. 2. Reputation, trust & 
confidence. 3. Fines. 4. Commercial sensitive information. 5. Damage to 
relationship with partners we work with possibly won't work with us 
again. 6. Potential loss of staff through dismissal. 7. ICO investigation. 8. 
Loss/misuse of personal data. 9. Loss of business time. 10. Could be put 
into special measures. 11. Substantial fine 12. Potential fraud.

4 3 12 Hardy, Nik  1.SMT support
 2.Data Protec on communica on plan adopted
 3.Updated Informa on Governance policies & procedures
 4.Corporate informa on audit carried out
 5.DPIA procedure adopted
 6.DPO/SIRO appointed
 7.Lawful basis for processing personal data iden fied
 8.Reviewed how we seek, record & manage consent
 9.Reviewed legacy contracts
 10.Reviewed & updated Privacy No ces
 11.Devised process to ensure Rights of Individuals’ are maintained
 12.Data breach management process  observed by all staff
 13.Mandatory data protec on and GDPR e-learning for all staff  

 1. Compliance monitoring to be undertaken
 2. Further targeted training for Tier 3 Managers 

3. Mandatory e learning in data protection - by April 2020
 4. Ensure all new relevant contracts are GDPR compliant
 5. Tighten up data sharing arrangements

6. Routine review of policies and procedures - by Sept 2020

4 2 8

56 Potential Local Government Reorganisation 
in Cumbria could create uncertainty around 
the future and affect the ability of the 
Council to deliver the Council plan

The Council could face an uncertain future that may affect the ability of 
the Council to deliver against existing ambitions. This may be because 
of political, and financial uncertainty.

4 3 12 Hardy, Nik Participation in any discussions around the future of Local Government in Cumbria.

Ongoing monitoring of the wider policy context around Local Government reorganisation. 

1. Participate in wider discussions around Local Government reorganisation in Cumbria

2 Ongoing monitoring of the wider policy context by the Strategy, Policy and Performance team.

0

58 Mental Health and Wellbeing of our 
Workforce deteriorates

Reduced levels of Customer Service
Reduced productivity
Staffing costs increase
Cannot deliver organisational objectives

4 3 12 Seekings, 
Andrew

Occupational Heath Provider and Counselling Service in place
Wellbeing / mindfulness sessions ran weekly
Absence management process in place and reviewed

Review of health provider provision
Visit local businesses to understand how sickness is managed elsewhere
Complete pulse surveys to identify causes
Provide managers additional training 
use of alternative therapies

4 1 4

P
age 78



ID Ri
sk

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Im
pa

ct
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Ri
sk

 S
co

re

Re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y

M
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

M
iti

ga
tin

g 
A

ct
io

ns
 p

la
nn

ed

Po
st

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Im

pa
ct

Po
st

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Li

ke
lih

oo
d

Po
st

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Ri

sk
 S

co
re

13 Business rates collected fall below baseline 
funding

Less cash income and more reliance on reserves. Unable to balance 
budget. Further service cuts.

3 3 9 Nicholson, 
Catherine

In house Revs and Bens team monitor collection rates and report back to  Head of Finance to provide early 
warning. Existing award of business rate reliefs policy in place but based on system before localisation of 
NNDR. Application to pool business rates has been accepted again for 2016/17.  Cumbria wide group 
established with Cumbria County Council taking the lead role on the pool with specialist advice.
Regular meetings are held between all members of the pool to discuss the business rates income projections 
and to highlight any significant issues that are relevant to the pool and/or individual authorities. 
Monitoring currently in place is reviewed and changes/enhancements are discussed between relevant parties 
and where necessary actioned. 
The Allerdale sub-group has been set up and has now had a number of meetings to discuss potential growth, 
decline and any other relevant topics, members include revenues, planning, finance, economic growth and 
membership is reviewed to make sure it remains fit for purpose. 

 1.  Working with Revs and Bens Shared Service to develop more enhanced monitoring  e.g. top 20 rates payers, 
those in appeal etc.   
 2.  Update of discretionary rate relief planned
3. Set up Business Rates Working Group

3 2 6

18 Failure to align adequate people resources 
to council strategic priorities. 

Strategic Priorities and associated outcomes are not delivered
Transformation programme is not delivered.
Services fail to grow or be as efficient as required.

3 3 9 Seekings, 
Andrew

Review of performance management framework ensures that key issues and challenges facing the Council 
drives Council Plan and service plan priorities.  
Agreed Programmes and project approach is taken to delivering Council Plan and regular monitoring of 
budgets and performance is in place.

 •Review OD strategy - complete, ac on plan to be agreed
 •Review WGLL with managers group - complete
 •Performance against strategic priori es monitored on a regular basis at SMT - ongoing

Strengths assessment approach to recruitment and retention

3 2 6

22 Increased number of families in poverty Quality of life reduced, decreased customer satisfaction, reduced life 
expectancy. 

3 3 9 Seekings, 
Andrew

1. Development and delivery of the Tackling Poverty Strategy. 

2. Local poverty statistics monitored annually through the key issues paper  

1. Set up Delivery Board to oversee delivery by 30/4/18 - COMPLETE
2. Develop delivery plan for the Tackling Poverty Strategy Action Plan 2018-20 by 30/6/18 - COMPLETE. 
3. Deliver Tackling Poverty Strategy Action Plan Delivery Plan by March 2020.  
4. Further develop activity to ensure that tackling inequality and poverty is considered across the organisation 
in business planning and decision making through awareness raising and develop better use of impact 
assessments by Sept 2019. 
5. Review delivery through quarterly Delivery Board.

3 3 9

32 Failure to engage community in the 
planning process. 

Delays and costs associated with objections and challenges to planning 
applications and site allocations. Impact on delivery of the Council's 
growth ambitions for housing and employment land. Adverse impact 
on the Council's reputation. Impact on Council Tax, NNDR and New 
Homes Bonus received. 

3 3 9 Kerrigan, 
Kevin

Improved community consultation and engagement.
Member engagement in development of Local Plan through Planning Policy Working Group.
Training for Development Panel members - including applications review workshops. 
Appropriate level of detail in Development Panel reports.
Regular planning case management meetings
Wording of planning application correspondence reviewed.
Appeal decision reviews circulated to members. 
Moved to 4 week cycle for Development Panel with morning sessions focussed on member training, 
application review workshops and the introduction of pre-application engagement with developers on major 
schemes. 
The Planning and Building Control Manager has met with Town and Parish Councils to better understand their 
concerns and explain the role of the planning system. 

Consider development in the following areas 1. Community email/newsletter that people sign up to  get more 
information. 2. publicise the decision highlighting the process/grounds for objections. 3. more social media 
communication. 4. give public facing staff a route to feedback from conversations within the community - 

 concepts to be developed . 

2 2 4

P
age 79



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 80



Allerdale Borough Council – Executive Reports and Key Decisions 
 
1 March 2020 to 29 February 2021 
 

Decision Date decision to be 
made and decision 
maker 

Open/Exempt Portfolio Holder Officer contact details 

Member Appointment 
to iESE 
Transformation Ltd 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To make an 
appointment to the 
board of the iESE 
Transformation Ltd to 
enable the Council to 
benefit from 
membership of the 
Company.  

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
15 January 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Environmental Quality 
(Councillor George 
Kemp) 

Charles Holmes, Head 
of Community Services 
 
charles.holmes@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Creation of a Housing 
Company 
 
Key Decision 
 
To create a wholly 
owned housing 
company to provide a 
delivery mechanism for 
developing new homes 
in Allerdale.  

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
15 January 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Housing, Health and 
Wellbeing (Councillor 
Stephen Stoddart) 

Graeme Wilson, 
Programme Director for 
Maryport Regeneration 
 
graeme.wilson@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 9



Market Provision 
 
Key Decision 
 
Contract number 9SKN-
LJMHQY awarded to 
Geraud Markets 
Management Ltd to 
manage and operate our 
markets ends on 31 May 
2020. This report looks 
at the options for the 
management and 
operation of our markets 
from 1 June 2020 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
15 January 2020 

Fully exempt 
 
Report contains 
commercial information 
relating to Geruad 
Markets Management 
Ltd internal costs in 
managing and operating 
the market contract. 

 Kevin Kerrigan, Head of 
Place Development and 
Housing 
 
kevin.kerrigan@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Allerdale Investment 
Partnership - 
Amendments to 
Partnership 
Agreement 
 
Non-Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
15 January 2020 

Fully exempt 
 
 

 Kevin Kerrigan, Head of 
Place Development and 
Housing 
 
kevin.kerrigan@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Workington Town Deal 
Board 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To agree the 
composition of the 
Workington Town Deal 
Board and nominate a 
Council Board member 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
15 January 2020 

Open 
 
 

 Nik Hardy, Head of 
Strategy, Policy and 
Performance 
 
nik.hardy@allerdale.gov
.uk 

P
age 82



Portfolio Holder 
updates (non-key) 
 
Non-Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
29 January 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Leader of the Council 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Members Allowances 
19/20 
 
Non-Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
29 January 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Governance and 
Regulatory Services 
(Councillor John Cook) 

Lee Jardine, Democratic 
and Support Services 
Officer 
 
lee.jardine@allerdale.go
v.uk 

Calculation of Council 
Tax Base 2020/21 
 
Key Decision 
 
To seek approval of the 
calculation of the council 
tax base for the whole 
district and for each 
parish and town council 
for 2020-21 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
29 January 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Corporate Resources 
(Finance and Property) 
(Councillor Mike 
Johnson) 

Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

Keswick Transport 
Study 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
Jointly commissioned 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Environmental Quality 
(Councillor George 
Kemp) 

Charles Holmes, Head 
of Community Services 
 
charles.holmes@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

P
age 83



study between Allerdale 
Borough Council, 
Cumbria County 
Council, Lake District 
National Park and 
Keswick Town Council. 
The aim of the study is 
to understand and 
gather evidence on the 
current parking and 
traffic movement issues 
in the town and to 
provide options for 
improvement including 
cycling and walking. 

19 February 2020 

Quarter 3 Finance 
Report Oct to Dec  
2019 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To inform members of 
the Council’s financial 
performance against 
budget for the period 
April to December 2019 
along with the forecast 
position to 31 March 
2020 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
19 February 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Corporate Resources 
(Finance and Property) 
(Councillor Mike 
Johnson) 

Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

Quarter 3 Performance 
Report 2019/20 
 

 
 
 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Leader of the Council 
(Councillor Marion 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 

P
age 84



Non-Key Decision 
 
A report detailing 
performance against the 
Corporate Business 
Plan at the end of 
Quarter 3 2019.20. 

 
Executive 
 
19 February 2020 

Fitzgerald)  
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Appointment of 
Representative to 
Energy Coast West 
Cumbria Limited 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To appoint a Member to 
serve as the Council’s 
representative on the 
Energy Coast West 
Cumbria Limited, Energy 
Coast West Cumbria 
(Properties) Limited and 
Energy Coast West 
Cumbria (Workspace) 
Limited outside bodies 
which are a function of 
the Executive, to replace 
Councillor Mark 
Jenkinson 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
19 February 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Governance and 
Regulatory Services 
(Councillor John Cook) 

Gayle Roach, 
Democratic and Support 
Services Manager 
 
gayle.roach@allerdale.g
ov.uk 

Food Safety 
Enforcement Policy 
 
Key Decision 

 
 
 
 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Governance and 
Regulatory Services 
(Councillor John Cook) 

Sharon Sewell, Head of 
Governance and 
Regulatory Services and 
Monitoring Officer 

P
age 85



Executive 
 
19 February 2020 

 
sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Portfolio Holder 
Updates (non-key) 
 
Non-Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
4 March 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Leader of the Council 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Council Tax 
Resolution Report 
2020/21 
 
Key Decision 
 
To approve the 
necessary resolutions 
for Council Tax setting in 
accordance with 
Sections 31 – 36 of the 
Local Government 
Finance Act 1992. 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
4 March 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Corporate Resources 
(Finance and Property) 
(Councillor Mike 
Johnson) 

Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

Revenue & Capital 
Budget Proposals 
2020/21 
 
Key Decision 
 
To seek approval for the 
revenue and capital 
budgets and to present 

Executive  
 
19 February 2020  
 
Council 
 
4 March 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Corporate Resources 
(Finance and Property) 
(Councillor Mike 
Johnson) 

Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

P
age 86



the formal advice of the 
Chief Finance Officer on 
the robustness of 
estimates included in the 
budget and the 
adequacy of reserves 
which support the 
Council’s budgetary 
plans 

Treasury Management 
Strategy, Annual 
Investment Strategy 
and Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy 
Statement 2020/21 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To present the Treasury 
Management Strategy 
Statement, Annual 
Investment Strategy and 
Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy 
Statement 

Audit Committee  
 
18 February 2020  
 
Council 
 
4 March 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Governance and 
Regulatory Services 
(Councillor John Cook) 

Barry Lennox, Financial 
Services Manager 
 
barry.lennox@allerdale.
gov.uk 

Capital Investment 
Strategy 2020/21 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To present the Capital 
Investment Strategy 

Executive  
 
19 February 2020  
 
Council 
 
4 March 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Corporate Resources 
(Finance and Property) 
(Councillor Mike 
Johnson) 

Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

P
age 87



Proposed review of 
Licensing Fees and 
Charges 
 
Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
4 March 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Governance and 
Regulatory Services 
(Councillor John Cook) 

Gillian Collinson, Senior 
Licencing And 
Compliance Officer 
 
gillian.collinson@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Pay Policy Statement 
20/21 
 
Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
4 March 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Governance and 
Regulatory Services 
(Councillor John Cook) 

Kathryn Higgins, HR 
Advisor 
 
kathryn.higgins@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Community 
Governance Review - 
Silloth Town Council 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To agree the 
|Reorganisation Order 
for Silloth Town Council 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
4 March 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Governance and 
Regulatory Services 
(Councillor John Cook) 

Lindsay Tomlinson, 
Electoral Services 
Manager 
 
lindsay.tomlinson@aller
dale.gov.uk 

Allonby to Silloth 
multi-user coastal path 
 
Key Decision 
 
Silloth on Solway 
Coastal Community 
Team has secured £1 
million of Coastal 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
18 March 2020 

Part exempt 
 
If an open procurement 
is considered the best 
option tender returns 
submitted may be 
commercially sensitive. 

 Joe Broomfield, Town 
Centre Area Manager 
 
joe.broomfield@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

P
age 88



Communities funding to 
extend the coastal multi-
user path from Allonby 
to Silloth. Allerdale 
Borough Council is the 
Accountable Body for 
the Silloth on Solway 
Coastal Community 
Team and is leading on 
the delivery of the 
construction of the new 
path. A procurement 
exercise will be 
undertaken to select a 
lead contractor for the 
construction phase of 
the project. 

Strategic Review of 
Homeless Services & 
New Homeless 
Strategy 2020-2025 
 
Key Decision 
 
Strategic review of 
homeless services and 
the development of a 
new strategy 2020-2025 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
15 April 2020 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Stephen 
Stoddart 

Andrea Smith, Policy 
Manager (Housing) 
 
andrea.smith@allerdale.
gov.uk 

Council Strategy 
Delivery Plan 2020-24 
 
Key Decision 

 
 
 
 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Leader of the Council 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 

P
age 89



 
To approve the 2020-24 
Council Strategy 
Delivery Plan. The 
Delivery Plan sets out 
specific activity that will 
be undertaken over the 
next four years to work 
towards achieving the 
objectives set out in the 
Council Strategy and is 
the proposed vehicle by 
which the Council will 
report progress against 
the Council Strategy 
2020-2030. 

Executive 
 
15 April 2020 

alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Quarter 4 Performance 
Report 2019/20 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
A report detailing 
performance against the 
Corporate Business 
Plan at the end of 
Quarter 4 2019/20. 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
13 May 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Leader of the Council 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Local Plan (part 2) 
 
Key Decision 
 
To consider the 
Planning Inspector's 

Executive  
 
18 March 2020  
 
Council 
 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Leader of the Council 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Julie Ward, Policy 
Manager (Spatial) 
 
julie.ward@allerdale.gov
.uk 

P
age 90



report and adoption of 
Local Plan (part 2) 

20 May 2020 

 
Meetings of the Council, Executive and Scrutiny Committees are open to the public (except when exempt (confidential) items are 
being considered).  It is advisable to check the agenda before attending a meeting, as decision dates may be subject to change.   
Agendas and supporting documents for meetings of the Executive can be found on the Council’s website www.allerdale.gov.uk or 
at Allerdale House, Workington, Cumbria, CA14 3YJ 
 
Further information is available by calling 01900 702502 
 
Any representations as to why a meeting should be open to the public should be made in writing to Democratic Services at the 
above address. 
 
A list of the Executive members can be found at http://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=11P

age 91

http://www.allerdale.gov.uk/
http://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=11


T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 92



  

Proposed Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020    

Last updated: 11/02/2020 

 

Agenda items for Committee meetings 

Meeting Date  Items  Further Information Format Council Plan 
Theme 

 

Friday 27 
March 2020 
1.30 p.m. 

Reports from 
representatives 
to other scrutiny 
bodies 

There are a number of other scrutiny bodies which the 
Council is represented on. Other scrutiny bodies to 
provide update on their work: 
LEP Scrutiny Board 
Cumbria Police and Crime Panel Joint Committee 
Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 
Sellafield sites stakeholder group 

Presentations / Committee 
meeting agenda item 

All Council strategy 
priorities 

Annual update 
from the 
Community 
Safety 
Partnership 

Scrutiny of the Community Safety Partnership is 
written into legislation as a requirement of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

Presentation / Committee 
meeting agenda item 

Resilient communities  
 

Lead Officer – Head of Governance and Regulatory Services 
Portfolio Holder – Councillor Stephen Stoddart 

Draft Executive / 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Protocol 

This document sets out the working relationship 
between the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
the Executive. 

Committee meeting 
agenda item 

All Council strategy 
priorities 

Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance 
Portfolio Holder – Councillor Stephen Stoddart 

 

Friday 24 April 
2020 
1.30 p.m. 

Strategic review 
of homelessness 
services and 
strategy 

This needs to be reviewed every five years. This will be 
an update on progress of the review. Once the 
strategy is drafted it will be considered by Executive 

Presentation / Committee 
meeting agenda item 

Resilient communities  
 

Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance 
Portfolio Holder – Councillor Stephen Stoddart 

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 10



  

Proposed Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020    

Last updated: 11/02/2020 

Meeting Date  Items  Further Information Format Council Plan 
Theme 

Completion of 
exploration of ESF 
funded training 
provision 

The previous Committee had received presentations 
from a number of local training providers together 
with an overview from Cumbria LEP.    

Committee meeting 
agenda item 

Resilient communities  
& 
Invest to grow 

Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance 
Portfolio Holder – Councillor 

Annual work 
programme 2020-
2021 

Consideration of items for the work programme 
during the next municipal year. 

Committee meeting 
agenda item 

All Council strategy 
priorities 

Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance 

 

Items for future programming 

 Topic Further Information Possible start date 
1 Analysis of income and 

spend by geographic area 
The Council Tax base for each area is known and therefore how much it contributes; 
and the same for the Business Rates base. Discretionary income is known too: council 
property which generates income is readily identifiable in its location. 

Spring / summer 2020 

2 Rural issues, particularly 
considering addressing 
social exclusion 

The issues of social exclusion for those living in rural areas are a concern for a number 
of organisations both locally and nationally, as well as for local people and local 
councillors as their representatives. With a number of possible issues to explore, the 
Committee would need to identify which aspect(s) to focus upon. 

TBC 

 

  

P
age 94



  

Proposed Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020    

Last updated: 11/02/2020 

 

Regular items for each Committee agenda 

 

Items  
 

Council Plan 
Priority  

 

Purpose  
 

Lead Officer  
 

Lead 
Portfolio 
Holder   

 

Lead Scrutiny 
Member  
 

Forward Plan All Council Plan 
priorities 

To identify any forthcoming items 
which the Committee may consider  

Head of Governance and 
Regulatory Services 

Leader of the 
Council  

Co-Chairs of the 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Work Programme 
Updates  

All Council Plan 
priorities 

To provide the Committee with the 
opportunity to review  its’ own 
work plan for the rest of the year  

Policy Officer (Scrutiny and 
Partnerships) 

Not applicable Co-Chairs of the 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Task and Finish 
Group Updates  

All Council Plan 
priorities 

To receive progress reports from 
any Task and Finish Group 

Policy Officer (Scrutiny and 
Partnerships) 

Not applicable Chair of individual 
Task and Finish 
Groups 

Portfolio Holder 
Updates 

All Council Plan 
priorities 

To receive a regular report from 
individual Portfolio Holders 

Head of Strategy, Policy 
and Performance 

Leader of the 
Council and 
Portfolio Holders 

Co-Chairs of the 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Proposed meeting dates to consider any call-in requests received following currently scheduled Executive meetings: 

Monday 9 March; Monday 6 April; Monday 4 May (the Bank Holiday has been rescheduled to Friday 8 May); Tuesday 2 June. 

These dates are indicative only and represent the fifth working day after the eight day call-in period, should any call-in requests be received 

after a meeting of the Executive. 

 

 

P
age 95



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 96


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 To consider the report of the Climate Change Task and Finish Group
	7 Strategic Commissioning and Procurement Strategy
	Strategic Commissioning and Procurement Strategy

	8 Quarter 3 Performance Report 2019/20
	Appendix 1 for Quarter 3 Performance Report 2019/20, 19/02/2020 Executive
	Appendix 1A_Q3report2019-20_activities-and-projects_final, 19/02/2020 Executive
	Appendix 1B for Quarter 3 Performance Report 2019/20, 19/02/2020 Executive
	Appendix 1C for Quarter 3 Performance Report 2019/20, 19/02/2020 Executive

	9 Forward Plan
	10 Work Programme and Outcomes Monitoring

